PUBLIC NOTICE OF MEETING
TAKE NOTICE THAT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE
Board of Directors of
Reunion Ranch Water Control and Improvement District
Will be held at the offices of Willatt & Flickinger, PLLC,
12912 Hill Country Blvd., Suite F-232, Austin, Texas 78738 (SEE NOTES BELOW)

in Travis County, Texas, commencing at 2:00 p.m. on June 15, 2021, to consider and act upon any
or all of the following:

PLEASE NOTE: THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD BY REMOTE ACCESS ONLY IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE MARCH 16, 2020 ORDER BY GOVERNOR ABBOTT TEMPORARILY SUSPENDING CERTAIN
REQUIREMENTS OF THE TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT TO ADVANCE THE GOAL OF LIMITING FACE-
TO-FACE MEETINGS TO SLOW THE SPREAD OF COVID-19. NO PERSONS WILL BE AT THE MEETING
LOCATION AND NO EQUIPMENT WILL BE AT THE MEETING LOCATION FOR ACCESS TO THE
MEETING. HOWEVER, MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY ACCESS THIS MEETING BY TELEPHONE AND
PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY CALLING ONE OF THE FOLLOWING TOLL-FREE NUMBERS: (877)
853-5247 OR (888) 788-0099 AND ENTERING THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION: MEETING ID: 897 7580
8372 AND PASSWORD: 916224. USING THE ZOOM APP YOU CAN ALSO ACCESS THE MEETING ON
YOUR SMART PHONE OR COMPUTER BY ENTERING THE FOREGOING MEETING ID AND PASSWORD.

PLEASE SEE THE DISTRICT’S WEBSITE AT WWW.RRWCID.ORG FOR THE MEETING PACKET.
AGENDA

1. Call to order.

28 Roll call of Directors.

3 Public Comments.
This is an opportunity for members of the public 1 address the Board of Directors conecerning any issue that is not on the
agenda. The response of the Board to any comment under this heading is limited 10 making a statement of specific fctual
information in response to the inquiry, or, reciting existing policy in response to the inquiry. Any deliberation of the issues
is limited 10 a proposal to place it on the agenda for a later meeting. Each speaker shall be limited to 3 minutes, unless more
than 10 members of the public wish to speak during this meeling. In such case, speakers offering public comment shall be
limited to | minute each,

Note: Members of the public wishing to address the Board of Directors on specific agenda items will be required to indicate the agenda items on
which they wish (o speak. They will be given an opportunity to speak when the item is called and prior to consideration by the Board. Such
comments shall be limited to 3 minutes per speaker for cach agenda item, [f more than 10 members of the public wish to spuak, all speakers shall
be limited 10 | minute each per item per person,

4, Minutes of prior meetings.

3, Developer’s Report on status of construction within the District, development entitlements,
provision of water, wastewater and drainage services within the District, sales of lots to
builders, homebuilding within the District, status of development loans and actions of third
parties opposing or supporting development within the District.

6. Approval of construction plans and pay estimates, change orders and acceptances of
completion with respect to construction contracts.

7. Advertisement for bids and approval, award, recommendation and administration of
construction contracts.



10.

11.

12.

13,

14.

Engineer’s Report on status of construction within the District, development entitlements,
provision of water, wastewater and drainage services within the District, pending permit
applications, sales of lots to builders, homebuilding within the District and past, present
and future bond issues; Use of effluent to irrigate rights-of-way and timeline for same.

Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion; Wastewater Treatment Plant improvements and
modifications; alternatives for additional odor control measures at the District’s wastewater
plant and funding for same, including possible agreement with Taylor Morrison on funding
for same; Proposal for third-party odor consultant/inspector.

Review of District easements and land necessary for District operations.

Improvements to pedestrian access point on easement from Mary Elise Way to Windmill
Pond.

Long-term District Capital Improvements Plan.

Committee Reports, Assignment and Membership.
District Operations (Dennis & Terri)
Communications (Terri & Dennis)
WTCPUA (Nathan & Dennis)

Water Quality/Land Use (Ron & Terri)

90w

Operations and Maintenance Report.

A. Administrative

B Wastewater Treatment Plant; Odor Control Measures and Complaints; All
actions necessary to bring the wastewater treatment plant into compliance
with TCEQ permit and to mitigate odor problems
Wastewater Grinder Stations
Effluent Irrigation System & Fields
Distribution & Collection System & Lift Stations
Billing Adjustments
Delinquencies
Customer Meter Issues
Customer Complaints
Stormwater conveyance & pond maintenance
Landscaping
Notices to residents on water quality
Maintenance Items in connection with Pre-Purchase Inspection Letter
submitted by TCEQ.
Out of District Water/Wastewater Service Requests
Policy Regarding Use of Greenspace and other District Property
Pump rentals
Impact of winter storms on operation of water, wastewater and water quality
systems; system performance as designed and system failures; actions taken
to address system failures; recommendations for repairs or improvements
lo systems; associated costs and possible application for disaster relief funds

LCTPOZ Zrrm-rmommon



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

R. Insurance claims
S. Maintenance access

Expenditures, contracts, repairs, replacements and maintenance related to Operations and
Maintenance Report in Item 13 above.

Bookkeeper’s Report on the financial affairs of the District, including authorization of
payment of bills.

Legislative Update.

Notice of Violations Issued by TCEQ dated August 5, 2019; Exit Interview from TCEQ
site visit of July 10, 2020; TCEQ Notice of Enforcement for Compliance Evaluation
Investigation, dated September 25, 2020; Proposed Agreed Enforcement Order and related
fines.

Request for Board recommendation for Willatt & Flickinger, PLLC.

Adjourn.

The Board may go into closed session at any time when permitted by Chapter 551, Government Code. Before going into

closed session a quorum of the Board must be assembled in the meeting room, the meeting must be convened as an open meeting
pursuant to proper notice, and the presiding officer must announce that a closed session will be held and must identify the sections
of Chapter 551, Government Code, authorizing the closed session.

(SEAL)

Xttofx{éy for the District

******************************************************************************

The District is committed to compliance with the Americans with Disabilitics Act. Reasonable modifications and equal access to
communications will be provided upon request. Please call Jeniffer Concienne, Willatt & Flickinger, PLLC, at (512) 476-6604,
for information.



MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING
OF
REUNION RANCH WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

STATE OF TEXAS §
§
COUNTY OF HAYS §

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of Reunion Ranch Water Control and
Improvement District was held at 2:00 p.m. on May 18, 2021 by remote access only in accordance
with the March 16, 2020 Order by Governor Abbott temporarily suspending certain requirements
of the Texas Open Meetings Act to advance the goal of limiting face-to-face meetings to slow the

spread of COVID-19. The meeting was open to the public and notice was given as required by
the Texas Open Meetings Act and as modified by the Governor’s Order.

1.  CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order.

2. ROLL CALL OF DIRECTORS

A roll call of the Directors was taken. The Directors present were:

Dennis Daniel — President

Terri Purdy — Vice President

Ron Meyer - Secretary

Thomas J. Rogers, Jr. — Assistant Secretary
Nathan Neese — Assistant Secretary

thus constituting a quorum. All Directors were present.

Also present at the meeting were Bill Flickinger, Matt McPhail and Jeniffer Concienne
with Willatt & Flickinger, PLLC, Andrea Wyatt and Evan Parker with Murfee Engineering, Allen
Douthitt with Bott & Douthitt, Makenzi Scales and Ronya Keyes with Inframark, LLC, Mike
Moyer with Taylor Morrison and residents Mark Olson and Gary Grass.

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS

No public comments were made.

4. MINUTES OF PRIOR MEETINGS

President Dennis Daniel entertained a motion for approval of the Minutes of the April 20,
2021 and April 26,2021 board meetings. Motion was made by Tom Rogers and seconded by Terri
Purdy to approve the Minutes as presented. The motion carried unanimously.



5. DEVELOPER’S REPORT ON STATUS OF CONSTRUCTION WITHIN THE
DISTRICT. DEVELOPMENT ENTITLEMENTS, PROVISION OF WATER.
WASTEWATER AND DRAINAGE SERVICES WITHIN THE DISTRICT,
SALES OF LOTS TO BUILDERS, HOMEBUILDING WITHIN THE DISTRICT.
STATUS OF DEVELOPMENT LOANS AND ACTIONS OF THIRD PARTIES
OPPOSING OR SUPPORTING DEVELOPMENT WITHIN THE DISTRICT

Mike Moyer reported on the building metrics in the District. A total of 483 homes have
been sold, with 456 closings. The average sales price in the District is $537,902. All homes should
be closed by the end of summer or early fall 2021.

Jeniffer Concienne reported on Frank Krasovec’s building status. Heyl Homes is building
on 6 of the 15 lots. They also plan to take down the other 9 lots this year.

6.  APPROVAL OF CONSTRUCTION PLANS AND PAY ESTIMATES. CHANGE
ORDERS AND ACCEPTANCES OF COMPLETION WITH RESPECT TO
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

Engineer Andrea Wyatt discussed Pay Application No. 5 submitted by Excel Construction
Services, LLC in the amount of $161,758.80 for the WWTP expansion project.

Motion was made by President Dennis Daniel and seconded by Tom Rogers to approve
payment of the foregoing pay application as presented. The motion carried unanimously.

7. ADVERTISEMENT FOR _ BIDS AND  APPROVAL. AWARD.
RECOMMENDATION AND ADMINISTRATION OF CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTS

This item was not discussed.

8. ENGINEER’S REPORT ON STATUS OF CONSTRUCTION WITHIN THE
DISTRICT. DEVELOPMENT ENTITLEMENTS, PROVISION OF WATER.
WASTEWATER AND DRAINAGE SERVICES WITHIN THE DISTRICT.
PENDING PERMIT APPLICATIONS, SALES OF LOTS TO BUILDERS.
HOMEBUILDING WITHIN THE DISTRICT AND PAST, PRESENT AND
FUTURE BOND ISSUES: USE OF EFFLUENT TO IRRIGATE RIGHTS-OF-
WAY AND TIMELINE FOR SAME

9. WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT EXPANSION: WASTEWATER
ITREATMENT PLANT IMPROVEMENTS AND MODIFICATIONS:
ALTERNATIVES FOR ADDITIONAL ODOR CONTROL MEASURERS AT
THE DISTRICT’S WASTEWATER PLANT AND FUNDING FOR SAME.
INCLUDING POSSIBLE AGREEMENT WITH TAYLOR MORRISON ON
FUNDING FOR SAME. INCLUDING POSSIBLE AGREEMENT WITH
TAYLOR MORRISON ON FUNDING FOR SAME




Items 8 and 9 were discussed together.
Evan Parker discussed the Engineer’s Report as included in the agenda package.
The wastewater flows are still trending downward due to the pump and haul.

In regard to the WWTP expansion, the heavy rainfall partially undid the excavation for the
lift station. The contractor dewatered and re-excavated and installed lift station subgrade. Due to
the inclement weather forecast, the installation of the lift station may not commence until the last
week of May. The new SBR equipment is on-site. The screens are expected to arrive today as
well. The dewatering equipment is scheduled to ship out at any time.

Murfee Engineering has collaborated with Inframark on making changes to prevent future
plant overflows. As the Board requested last month, an estimate of costs for the delays caused by
the spills and the winter storm has been included in the agenda package.

Due to cost saving issues, the 210 conversion project will be pushed to June.

President Dennis Daniel asked about the cost of the weekly pump and haul. Manager
Makenzi Scales will send that information to Jeniffer Concienne. Bookkeeper Allen Douthitt
discussed some costs related to the spills and freeze. President Daniel would like a memo on the
costs due to the spills. Engineer Andrea Wyatt indicated that the hauls can be moved to business
hours to save some money. Evan Parker also discussed the costs related to the freeze and spills.
President Daniel advised that the District may seek FEMA assistance for some of the costs.
Manager Makenzi Scales can help coordinate that task.

President Daniel asked Mike Moyer about the written proposal from Taylor Morrison on
odor control costs. Mr. Moyer advised that matter is with the legal team right now. He advised
that Taylor Morrison will most likely want some type of release. This matter will be brought back
to the next meeting.

Engineer Andrea Wyatt informed the Board that locating a 3" party odor inspection has
been a difficult process. She is working with another District to obtain some information. As of
today, the wastewater plant expansion project has been delayed 6-weeks. The complete date is
now in mid-August.

10. REVIEW OF DISTRICT EASEMENTS AND LAND NECESSARY FOR
DISTRICT OPERATIONS

Resident Gary Grass thanked the Board for the pond review.

There was discussion of access issues by Inframark through the District easements.
Inframark will provide a list of those areas and the location of all the manholes. These issues can
be addressed with the HOA when the land is conveyed from Taylor Morrison to the HOA, with
the District having appropriate easements to conduct District operations.



Mike Moyer discussed the need for the director’s lot. Attorney Bill Flickinger advised that
the Board still consists of two non-residents so that lot is still needed.

11.  COMMITTEE REPORTS, ASSIGNMENT AND MEMBERSHIP

A, Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements and Odor Control
(Dennis & Terri)
B. Communications (Terri & Dennis)
i. Board updates

C. WTCPUA (Nathan & Dennis)
D. Water Quality/Land Use (Ron & Terri)

President Dennis Daniel would like to rename the committee on the Wastewater Treatment
Plant Improvements and Odor Control. He would like to call it District Operations.

Vice President Terri Purdy discussed the monthly Board meeting summaries. This
information will be a condensed version of the minutes.

Director Ron Meyer discussed the wet pond tour. The pedestrian walkway will need to be
improved in that area. Engineer Andrea Wyatt advised that she will provide a memo on suggested
improvements. Vice President Purdy discussed other pond improvements, such as an aeration mat.
She would also like to see guidelines on things that the residents should be or should not be doing
in relation to the stormwater and within the neighborhood. Attorney Bill Flickinger advised that
we can review the District Rules with the committee.

President Daniel requested that Inframark provide updates to the appropriate committees
so that they are in loop on operational issues between the Board meetings.

12. IMPROVEMENTS TO PEDESTRIAN ACCESS POINTS ON DISTRICT
PROPERTY

This item was discussed above.

13. OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE REPORT
A, Administrative
B. Wastewater Treatment Plant; Odor Control Measures and
Complaints; All actions necessary to bring the wastewater treatment
plant into compliance with TCEQ permit and to mitigate odor
problems

Customer Meter Issues
Customer Complaints
Stormwater conveyance & pond maintenance

C. Wastewater Grinder Stations

D. Effluent Irrigation System & Fields

= Distribution & Collection System & Lift Stations
F. Billing Adjustments

G. Delinquencies

H.

L

J.

4-



K. Landscaping

L. Notices to residents on water quality

M. Maintenance Items in connection with Pre-Purchase Inspection
Letter submitted by TCEQ.

N. Out of District Water/Wastewater Service Requests

0. Policy Regarding Use of Greenspace and other District Property

P. Pump rentals

Q. Impact of winter storms on operation of water, wastewater and water
quality systems; system performance as designed and system
failures; actions take to address system failures; recommendations
for repairs or improvements to systems; associated costs and
possible application for disaster relief funds

R. Insurance claims

Manager Makenzi Scales discussed the Executive Summary with the Board.

The District currently has 505 active connections. 9.13 million gallons of water was
purchased for the month of April. The District incurred a 10% water loss this period. Mrs. Scales
reported 23 delinquent letters were mailed out, door tags were hung. However, there were no
disconnects of water service. It was reported that Inframark repaired a small leak on the water
sample point near the master meter.

Flows at the wastewater treatment plant totaled 1.19 MG, which averages 40,000 GPD.
Plant capacity is at 80%, however the BOD and TSS permit levels exceeded the limit. A cellular
system was installed to reactivate the flow alarms. Floats in the Pre-EQ, GST, SBR and Effluent
wet wells are all calling out for high levels. The scheduled pump and hauls have been working
well to contain the levels. Mrs. Scales reported on a spill that occurred due to debris at the bar
screen. The large rain event potentially pushed a large amount of rags, wipes, etc. down the
system. Mrs. Scales also noted that a solenoid on the irrigation fields has been repaired. That is
the area that was previously noted as staying saturated.

There was discussion of the recent rainstorm that most likely caused the levels to fail.
President Dennis Daniel asked for a written report on the levels. Mrs. Scales will send that
information to Jeniffer Concienne for distribution to the Board.

Pond inspection reports are included in the agenda package. There was discussion on same.

Mrs. Scales presented the Water Quality Report for consideration. President Dennis Daniel
asked who is responsible for the testing, Inframark or the PUA. After discussion, motion was
made by Terri Purdy and seconded by Nathan Neese to approve the Water Quality Report as
presented. Tom Rogers had technical difficulties and was unable to vote. The motion carried.
The Water Quality Report will need to be posted on the District’s website.



14, EXPENDITURES, CONTRACTS., REPAIRS. REPLACEMENTS AND
MAINTENANCE RELATED TO OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE
REPORT IN ITEM 13 ABOVE

This item was not discussed.

15. BOOKKEEPER’S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL AFFAIRS OF THE
DISTRICT, INCLUDING AUTHORIZATION OF PAYMENT OF BILLS

Bookkeeper Allen Douthitt discussed the financials and updated cash activity report with
the Board. There is a concern with the budget due to the expense of the pump and haul. President
Dennis Daniel would like to see the forecast of expenses to year end added as a column to the
budget. After discussion, President Daniel entertained a motion. Motion was made by Nathan
Neese and seconded by Ron Meyer to approve the invoices, per diems and fund transfers as
discussed. Tom Rogers had technical difficulties and was unable to vote. The motion carried.

16. LEGISLATIVE UPDATE

Attorney Bill Flickinger advised that the legislative session is coming to an end in June.
Once it does, he will review the bills that passed and bring an update to the Board next month.

17.  CONTINUATION OF REMOTE BOARD MEETINGS/WHEN IN-PERSON
BOARD MEETINGS WILL BE REQUIRED

Attorney Bill Flickinger advised that the ability to have remote board meetings will most
likely remain through June or late summer. After discussion, it appears the Board favors the
remote board meetings at this time.

18.  NOTICE OF VIOLATIONS ISSUED BY TCEQ DATED AUGUST 5. 2019:
EXIT INTERVIEW FROM TCEQ SITE VISIT OF JULY 10. 2020: TCEQ
NOTICE OF ENFORCEMENT FOR COMPLIANCE EVALUATION
INVESTIGATION, DATED SEPTEMBER 25. 2020; PROPOSED AGREED
ENFORCEMENT ORDER AND RELATED FINES

Attorney Bill Flickinger discussed the response to the TCEQ on the current Notice of
Violations. The original 60-day deadline has been abated pending review of the response from the
TCEQ. No action is needed at this time.

19.  ADJOURN

President Dennis Daniel entertained a motion for adjournment. Motion was made by
Nathan Neese and seconded by Ron Meyer to adjourn the meeting. Tom Rogers had technical
difficulties and was unable to vote. The motion carried.



Dennis Daniel, President
Reunion Ranch WCID

ATTEST:

Ronald F. Meyer, Secretary
Reunion Ranch WCID

[SEAL]

1\ReunionRanch\minutes\05-18-21
6/2/21



Murfee €ngineering Company

June 3, 2021

Mr. Dennis Daniel, President

and Board of Directors

Reunion Ranch WCID

c¢/o Willatt & Flickinger

12912 Hill Country Blvd., Suite F-232
Austin, Texas 78738

Mr. Mike Moyer

Taylor Morrison of Texas, Inc.
11200 Lakeline Blvd

Suite 105A

Austin, Texas 78717

Re: Reunion Ranch WWTP Expansion — Recommendation for Pay Application No. 6 from
Excel Construction Services, LLC.

Mr. Daniel & Reunion Ranch WCID Board, Mr. Moyer:

Attached please find Pay Application No. 6 in the amount of $858,600.00 from Excel
Construction Services, LLC for work performed through May 31", 2021, on the above-
referenced project. | have reviewed the attached documentation for compliance with the
Contract Documents, concur with the items and quantities, and therefore recommend approval
and payment of Pay Application No. 6 in the amount of $858,600.00. If you have any questions
or if you would like any additional information, please contact me at your convenience.

Sincerely,
1 f,(n',{'-':?.i-'. Mg bl
Andrea Wyatt, P.E.

Attachments: Pay Application No. 6

CC: Bill Flickinger — Willatt & Flickinger
George Murfee, P.E.
Evan Parker, E.I.T.
MEC File No. 12002.108

W:\Reunion Ranch WCID\Facilities\Wastewater\WWTP A\Expansion\Construction Admin\Pay App\PA 004

1107 Copital of Texas Highway South « Bullding D, Suite 110 - Austin, Texas 78746 » 512/327-9204 - TBPE £353



eleq p1ecq giDMYY
ajed UoSLIO JojAe |
ayeq Auedwon Bupssu)bug ssunp
120c/E/9

a3anawwoo3y sif 00°009'858  § |

Sy,

40 ._.sz><..._

7

ON ~,

0l&e ] IS %
pZ0Z-10-80 Sendxg "WwoD muw.\%m.ﬁm a
sex9] JO B1EIS Dliand AIBON .mw ........@,..m.

QNY3E N3V

A

S AT/ T

1O 's801M8g/oONISUOD [S0X3

\/

“anp MOU I UIBJ3L UMOYS JuswAed JuaLINg jey} pue JSUMQ B4} oy

paAleas) sjusAed pue PSnss) a1am JuswAed 10} s91eLpED snoiaaid

LaIyM 1o} IO 10} JojoeuoD Ay} AQ pred ussq Aey SIUNOWE (je jey}
‘SJUBWINACQ J9RIUCD BU} UIM S9UBPIODDE Ul pa)e|diwon uasq sey wawied Joj
uonesyddy sy Aq paisand JIOMA 84} ja1j9g pue uonewlojUl ‘sfipajmouy
5,010B1U0D BY} 0 1584 aU) O} 1ey] SIS0 J0EHUD paubisiapun sy ]

INOLLYDIH1LH3D SHOLOVHLINOD

- ¢] 092 Aq eBueyd 1eN
(sbeureiay Buipnjoul)
ov'evL'eor'L $ HSINIZ OL 2ONVIVE 6 - - ¢ [svLOLENS
00009958 ¢ NCILY2i1ddV SIHL 3na LNNOWY 2
09'959'¢8L'L $ SINIWNAYL SNOIATHd $S31 'L
09'9%z'zv0'2 g 31va Ol 31919113 LNNOWY "9
01 218'922 ) %0l © IOVYNIVLIN ‘S
00°¥/1'692'2 g 3LvQ OL Q3¥O0LS ® d3131dN0D TVLOL P
00°000°SP¥'S [y 3Lvd OL NS 1OVILNOD ' suonanpaq suonIppy paaociddy sjeq "ON
S 3 SYIAUO IONVHI A8 IONVYHD 1IN 2 SYIQHO 3IONYHD AIN0HddY
00°000°Gr¥'S $ WNS LOVYINOD TVNIDIRIO “} ANVINNS ¥3QNO0 IONVHO

INIWAVd ¥O4 NOILLVIIIddV

8EL8. XL ‘uysny

gy0g8; Sexe) ‘dspuesT

AemyBiy sexa] jo [eyded L0k}

"3'd WeAM eaJpuy

ou} ‘Auedwon Supasuibug sapnpy
Y3IINIONT -BIA

09¢Z xod Od
IIBYINN PEYD
977 '$901A18S UOJONIISUOD) [89X]

HOLOVHINOD -wold

80/8/ sexa] ‘ujsny

00l "8IS 90N opeio| | SL¥0)

1o SN UNY

dLAAM Youey uolunay
YINMO 0L

d1lMM Youey

AUVIAINNS

uounay

rpoliad :o:mo:nn(
oN uonedyddy

120Z ‘1€ Aoy niyy
(9) 8218

INIWAVL S04 FLVIIHILHID
ONV NOILYOITddY S.HOLIOVILNOD




00009 $| woog $| - $| %004 00°000°9 $| - $ | 00000'9 $| - ¢ | 00°000‘9 S pEd JaMO|g 8L
00°000'0S s| - $ | 00°000'0€ $ %0 z $] - $| - s| - ¢ | 00°000'0E S adid puno.s SA0qY VL
00°005'6 S| - $ | 00005°64 $ %0 = $| - $| - $| - $ | 00°00s'6T S sdung }any3 912
00°009'5y §| woog'sy §| - $ %00} 00'000°9SY $| - 4 | 00°000'95% $| - $ | 00°00095Y S Juswdinba was Sl
00°000°zt $| - s | oo000'zy $ %0 - $| - $| - $] - $ | 00°000°CT S wawdinby ygs Aunsix3 128 X
000002} $| - $ | 00000021 $ %0 - $| - 3| - $| - $| 00°000°CT S wawdinb3 HES MSN 1°S g2
000052 $| coooo't  §| 0000S'9 $ %19 0070000} $| - $ | 00000°01 S| - ¢ | 00°005°9T S 121N 9SIN (A2
00'000'9 $| - $ | 00'000'9 $ %0 = 3| - §| - s| - $ | 00°000'9 5 adid 120D bl
00002} $| ooz S| - $ %001 00°000'Z} $1 - $ | 00°000'9 $ | 00°000'8 4| 00°000°CT S {/EA 180D JOLIBI] )
00'002'} $| wooz't $| - $| %001 00°000'Z} $| - S 00'000'2} ¢ | 00°000°2T S B 1800 JOouRX3 60'L
00002'? $| woozy $| - $| %00l 00°000'Z% $| - S 00'000'2Y ¢ | 00"000°TY $ \BUsIeN J8qey q0°2
00°000°S $| wooos $| - $| %00 00°000'0€ $| - g 00°000'08 $ | 00°000'0E S npioeg sjaioued 202
00002'v2 $| woog've $| - $ %00} 00°0002¥Z $| - $ 00000'2v2 4| 000002 S HAS S[BA 59B|d pue Jeqey ‘ulo4 902
00 008'z4 $| wooszr $| - $ %00} 00°000'GZ1 $| - 3 00°000'SZ1 $ | 00°'000°SZT S HES QIS 208|d pue Jeqey ‘Lo 502
00009 s| wooe | - $| %00, [oooo0® g| - $ 000009 ¢ | 00'000'9 $ fodxopuelid | p0'L
00°00€ $| wwooe ¢ - $| w%oor |ooooos $| - 3 00°000'€ ¢ [ 00°000'¢ $ speidung aredeid uealg €0L
00052 $| teosz $| - $|  %00L 00°00S'2 3] = $ 00°005'2 $| 00'00ST S our] ssedig aroway 20l
00°008'8 s| wooge §| - $| %001 00°000'88 gl - 3 00'006'98 $ | 00'000'38 S UolEAEOX 102
SOV ¥IMOTE ANV NISvd NOLLVHIVY L
- g 3 $
00°000°v2 gl - D0'000'%2 § %0 - $] - sl - | - 4| 00°000'%2 S $DA[BA Ju Bdid 96uB|d - INBA SAIBA SL'g
00'000'p $ $| 00000’y $ %0 e $| - §| - $| - $ | 00°000'Y S YO - INBA PABA ¥
00'000'¢ [ $ | 00000 $ %0 - ¢ - s| - sl - $ | 00°000°€ S Bunean a/axuod - JAEA SAJBA €19
00°000°9} $| - $ | 006009} $ %0 - $| - | = s - ¢ | 00'0C0'9T S INEA 2}250U00) 1SEI8Id - YNEA DAIBA [4%:]
00005z $| - $ | oo'00S'2 $ %0 . $| - $| - g| - 4] 0000S'T S adiy punouBiapup - INEA BAJEA 9
00'000'€9 $| - $ | 00000'€9 $ %0 = $| - $| - s| - $| 00°000°€9 S sdig - Lolessy V9
00'000'ES $] - $ | 00000'cs $ %0 - $| - $| - $| - 4| 00'000'€S S dwn 4 BigIBWGNgG - UOHEISY 609
00005°2€ $] - $ | 0000828 $ %0 = $| - 3| - $| - $| 00°005°LE S Juawdinb3 jonuo? JOPQ - UOREISH 80'9
00°005',€ $1 @o00s'9  §| 0000062 $ %CL 00'000'59 $] - $ | 00000°59 g| - $ | 00'000°06 S U80S [ESIU3A - UOLEISHT 209
00'000'81 s - s | ooo00'8) $ %0 - $| - $| - $| - $ | 00'000'ST $ IIPES - UonEISy] U’
00°000'Y [ %1 00°000'% 8 %0 = $| - S| - s - $ | 00000t S Bulea) e}a13u0D - UCHEISYN S0'9
00°00Z'E} $| 0oozy $| 000006 $ %28 00°000'zY $] - s | 00000°zF $| - ¢ | 00°000°TS S 1o - UoErsyn P09
00002t $] woogy  $| - $ %001 000002 gl = S | 00'000'Zy $| - $| 00000°TY S 8185007 JSEDAl] - UoneIsu €09
00'009 $ | owoog $| - $ %00} 00°000'9 $| - $ 00'000'9 $| 000009 S 14 109)9S - UoREISY 209
00'COL'2 $| wooL's | - $| %00l 00°000'LL $| - $ 00°000'42L $| 00°000'T< S UoEABIXT - UONEISYI] 109
NOILYLS 14N LN3MEN | po'9
000002 $| - $ | 000002 $ %0 s $| - $| - sl - $| 00°000°T S lipaeg £0°S
00°600'0} §| - $ | 00°000°01 $ %0 5 $| - s| - s| - $ | 00°000°0T S uonefEIsy; 20§
00'002'6 $| wooz  $|00000'6 $ 81 00'000°Z $| - 8 00'000'2 $ | 00'000°TT $ edid Lceascx3 10°¢
ANIT MM ONILSIXE OL ONILDANNOD DNIdid SS330¥d oo’
€0°Q0S'} s| awo0s) G| - ¢ %00} 00°000'S} s - g 00°000°S} $ | 00°000'G} 3 ue|d Agajeg youall| v
000591 $| 207051 $| 0000S't %05 00'00S'} HIE 5 00°005" | $ | 00000'c g UE]d UO[JBAEIXT 3
00°05€ S| 00°gsE ] - %001 00°005'E - 3 00°00S°E $ [ 00'005'c s dddMms [4
00'000°21 S| oozl s - $|  %00i 00°000'0.% 3| - gl - $ | 00°000°04 00°000°0L) 3 3oUBINSU| § ‘SPUCH ‘UQPEZLiqoN L
Bulujeway (%) ajeq ol abieloig u| polad ajeusg
aouejeg ajuejeg ysjuig 3jejdwoy PaI0)g puy Bululeway Siy1L SNOJABLd WOo14 anjep MIOM "ON
[ZLIN sBeuiejay 0] souejeg juadiad | pajejdwog (ejo) | sjeuejep pa1ajdwio Y0 pajnpaysg Jc uopduasag wsil
L20Z/\E15 '2UVYQ NOILYIIiddY
9 TON NOLLYQIiddY
Rew :gOI¥3d AVd

JLVYWILST SSIHO0Nd S.HOLIVHINOD

dLAVMW Youey uoiunay



002€)°28 $| - $| 00zeL'ie $ %0 c $| - S - $ | 00°ZET'LE S NEsuf dinb3 [eawnoa)d 4 JeaByomms | o gl
00'0S2'E $]| ovosz  $| 00005 $ %SL 000052 g - $| 000052 $ | 00°000°G $ | 00°000°0T $ 4onpuo puncig Juegiang 9313 ¥ butpunoid |yl
00°€HE'0E $| - S| ooeig0oe $ %0 - g1 - 3 - ¢ | O0'ET8'0E S Uojeuiuuia) B UORBIIEISU| SXM | £0'EL
007209 $| ooosv'z  §| D0'ZZE'BS $ %0€ 00°005°rZ gl - 3| 00°00S'v2 g| - $ | 00'ZZ8'C8 3 ¥puaD pasodx3 / PUNCID 8A0TY | ZO'EL
00'evL'se $| aooor'el S| 00ZpL'pL $ %06 00'000°vEt $| - $ | 00°000°0Y $ | 00°000'p6 $ | 00TrL'sPT S WPUSD [BANISI ON | LOEL
SIWALSAS YIMOd TvIIELI313 (A%
000099 $] ococe  $| 000009 ¢ %08 000009 §] - $ 00°000'9 ¢ | 00'000°2T S em 1eod gZh
00°'000°€} $] - $ | 00 000'€L $ %0 - ¢l - $| - s| - $ | 00°000°ET S SINPNS (9Eg ¥l
00'000°0Z g| - $| oo'c00'0z $ %0 - s - g| - s - ¢ | 00"000°'07 S buidid punob sroay | g771
00'000°2} $| ooocoo'zL ¢| - $| 00L |000000Z} $| - gl - ¢ | 00°000'021 $ | 00°000°0TT S eBEI01S 1UANIYT JfeM B98|d PUE JEGRY “LUI04 zgl
00'005'9 $| ogoos's | - $| %00L |00°000G9 ¢ - $ 00°000'S9 ¢ | 00°000°59 S sbeics Juenyy3 qe| eoe|d pue Jeqey ‘uuoy 1'Zh
NISVYE IOVYOLS LNINT243 r4n
00°000°0 $| - $ | 60'000°0L 3 %0 ) $| - E sl - ¢ | oo000'0T 3 Budid punoiB aaoqy | z'}
00'000'CE §| - $ | oo'oo0'cE $ %0 = $| - $| - $| - $ | 00°0000¢ S wawdnb3 Bugsixg owa | 174
SNOILVOIJIQOW NISYE F9V301S 3DaMs | L1
000000} $| - $ | 0000004 $ %0 = g| - $| - s - $ | 00°000°0T S [El=1Ey 3seg vol
00000082 $) - $ | 00°000'0€2 $ %0 = $| - s - s| - ¢ | 00°000°0€T S ewdnb3 Buueiemsq €0l
000000k | - $ | 00"000°0L 3 %0 - $| - $| - sl - ¢ | 00°000°0T S adig punosBiapun z0l
00'000°s $| - $ | 00°000°S $ %0 - $| - $| - $| - ¢ | 00°000’S S qe|g 08id 4N0g “LUwod 10}
ANINWJINDI ONR3LYMIA 30an1s | o}

. $| - 8| - $
00000° §| - $ | 00°000°¢ $ %0 - g| - B e ¢ | o0'000°E 5 191 (=18 g6
00'000'Zy §| - $ | 00000'ZY $ %0 . g| - gl - g] - $ | 00°000°CH S adig puna.g aa00y s
0000Z'L $| ooooe't §| - $ %001 000002t $| - $ | 00 000'% ¢ | 00°000's ¢ | 00'000'¢CT S IIBAA Y200 96
00009 §| oooos  g| - $| <%00L |00000'9 $) - $ | 00"c00'y $ | 00'000'Z & | 00°0009 5 24Oy (pKoes S'6
00'005'2 §| ooo0S'.  $| - $ %001 00'000'SZ 3| - S 00'000'S2 $ | 00°000°SL S 800 Sliep S0BId PUB JEQIY ‘uLod '8
00008't $| oooos'y $| - $ %00} 00°000'sy $| - $ 00°000'sh $ | 00'000'sY S §30 qeis S0€|d pue Jegay ‘ulog £6
00°00Z S $| %00L |00000L $| - 3| - $| 000002 $ | 00000°L S Aodxa pue jug z6
00°00¢ $| ovoos  §| - $| %00L | 00000 $| - $| - $ | 00°000's $ | 00°000°S $ uoReAEOX] VB
NISVE LOVLNOO ININOTHO 6
0000012 $| - $| 00'000"12 $ %0 - $| - g| - sl - ¢ | 00°000°TZ S edid punoIg SA0GY g'g
00'000'24 $| - $| 0000021 $ %0 . $| - HEE sl - $ | 00000'ZT S juswdinb3 j1esy '8
00°000'6Y $ | ovoco'sl  $| 00°000'0¢ $ %98 00°000'064 $| - $ | 00" 000'061 g| - $ | 00°000'0ZC S uswdinb3 Joyi4 €8
D0'0S6'y $| ovosy  s| 0oo0s'Y $ %08 00'00S'y $| - $| - $ | 00008 ¢ | 00'000°6 S qelS 89E]d JNOd Loy 4
00008 $| ovooe  &| - $| %o00L |o00000€ $| - $ 00°000'€ ¢ | 00°000°€ S uopeAedxy [§]
HILTS LNINT433T 9
00°000'S 5| - $| 00°000's $ %0 = $| - $| - $| - $ | 00000°S S wawdinb3 busix3 owag (1)

(%) sjeq oL abeJolg uj poiad orewysy

8duejeg aoueleg ysiuig 8)ajdwo) paio)g puy Buiulzway SIuL SNOJASIg WoJ4 anjeap WOAM "N
18301 abeureiay 0\ aJuejeg juediad | pejeidwog |ejo) sjeteiey pajajdwo) yiop painpsyos Jo uondyosaq way

12azLeie :31YQ NOLLYOINddY

9 TON NOLLYDIddV

Rew :qOI43d AVd

FLVYWILST SSTHO0d S.HOLIVHINOD

dLAAA YoueY uotunay



ov'erieoy’l §|oiLe'ee §1 00°928'SILL S %99 00'v.L'69C'C  $ - $ | oo000'vse $ | 00'vZL'GLE'L $ | 00'00DSHY'E 3 STVLOL LOVHLNOD TYNIDINO
- $| - s| - $
* g - gl - $
0¥'292 $| orioz $| - $| %00l |[00%/9C $| - $ 007292 $| 00292 3 OVAH | c09}
00'928'S g - $ | 00'928’s $ %0 z $| - $ % $|00°928's $ uogensu) Bupng Lo'elb
ONIGTING ISNOH dWNd 3avaedn | 00°9L
- $| - $| - $
00°005°¢ $| - $ | 00005 $ %0 - $| - $ - $ | 00°00S'E $ [ELelBN oS | Z0'SL
00'000'¢ §] - ¢ | ooo00'€ $ %0 - $| - $ - $ | 00'000°E 5 sdwng 79I AA JUEId L0'SL
Bt WELSAS ¥3LVA LNV St
s 8| - $| - $
00'000's g - $ | 00°000's $ %0 > $| - 3 - $ | 00°000's S PHS BAMN vl
00'052'8 $| 0os.  $| 00008, $| «os |[oooosz s| - $ | oooos's s| - $ | 00'000°ST S Budid punciB ercay | zpL
00000 5| woooz $| - $| %00F | 0000002 §| - $ | 00008'2 $| 00005z} ¢ | 00"000°0T 3 qeiS eoeld PUB fBqay Wiod | 4y
QINS ¥l B QNS diind SOavS LNAM443 OL SAOW vl
00°000'S s| - | 00°000's $ %0 - $| - $ - ¢ | 00'000's S sienuey W80 | glgl
00'000'S $ ¢ | 00000's $ %0 - s - 3 - ¢ | 00'000S $ dn perg uonEBWINYSY) /122l | ZL'EL
00'LYEEL $| c0oo0's  $ | 00T LYE'SO $ %8S 00'000°08 $| - $ | 00°000'sYy $| ooooc'se ¢ | o0'TrE'SHT $ o8| LLEL
00'005'2 $ $| 000052 $ %0 - $| - $ - $ | 00°005'L S JogeT g [ELSIEN JojeisuaD | gy
000522y g| - $ | ooosL 2y $ %0 E $| - $ - $ | 00'0SL'TY 5 lwawdnb3 101e)3u99 | gOEL
00°005'LS 5| - $ | 00005y 5 $ %0 - $| - $ G $| 00°'00S'TS 3 Toqe] sanpad WO | g0 €l
00004t $ | 00002 $ | 00006 $ %69 000002 $| - $ | 00000 $1 - $ | 00°006C S leusiepy sanpa<d W | 20°E)
00'00§°0} S| - $ | 0000501 $ %0 E $| - g - ¢ | 0000501 3 dinbg jeouos| [ JBebUSUMS | o'EL
Bujurewsy (%) ajeq of eBriOIg uj polied ajewySy
aduejeg aouejeqg ysjuid a}2)dwo) paloig puy Bujuleway SIYL SNOjAaLd WOl anjep NIOMA ‘oON
|ej0) abeujelay o] eoueleg jusdied | peisidwo) jejol sjeuajepy pajajduio] yaop, pejnpayosg jo uonduasag wayl
$20T/LEIS ‘31vd NOLLYONddY
9 "ON NOILYINddY
Rep :qoiad Avd

dLMM Youey uojunay
FLVWILST SSTHB0¥d S.&0LIOVHINOD



CONTRACTOR AFFIDAVIT OF BILLS PAID AND RELEASE OF LIENS

STATE OF TEXAS §
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON§

Owner: Taylor Morrison of Texas, Ine.

Affiant: Excel Construction Services, LLC

Project Description: Reunion Ranch Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion

In order to induce the Owner to make Progress Payment #6 to Affiant for work performed on the
above-described project, the Affiant states, under oath, as follows:

WAIVER AND RELEASE

Affiant acknowledges and certifies that it has been paid in full for all labor and materials provided
to the above-noted construction project. Affiant, and all of his or its agents, employees,
successors, assigns, subsidiaries, and legal representatives, will and do hereby waive and release
all Mechanic's liens, or similar lien rights, which have or might arise as a result of the Affiant's or
Affiant's agents' or employees’ providing labor and materials to the above-noted project.

ALL BILLS PAID

Affiant warrants, represents, and certifies that it has paid all laborers, subcontractors,
materialmen, and all other persons or parties who have provided labor or materials through, for,
or on behalf of the Affiant to the above-noted construction project, and Affiant is not aware of
any claim for payment or lien by such person or party who has furnished Work on the project
through or under Affiant.

Executed $858.600.00 .

Contractor Name: Excel Construction Services, LLC
By: Chad Mitchell
Title: Project Managers

Subscribed and sworn to before me under my official seal of office this g day of
i i LY 520_25f ,

WA Bl KAREN BERND
Notary Public, State of Texas
P . Expires 08-01-2024
RS Notary ID 12063510

L/
%
5
-
83
A

o

W,

B

-




Change Proposal Request No.003
(Not a Change Order)

Project Name:

Reunion Ranch WWTP
Expansion

Project Owner: Taylor Morrison

Engineer: MEC Initiated by: O Engineer X Contractor

Excel Construction Services, LLC
PO Box 2260
Leander, Texas 78646

Contractor: Date: June 4, 2021

Attention: The following change in the contract on this project is proposed. Please provide your proposed price for the
cost of this change.
¢ A breakdown of cost SHALL be provided upon request by the Owner or Engineer.

¢ Work shall not commence until authorized by the Owner.

Description of the Proposed Change:

Additional cost and days related to Winter Storm

By _ Chad Mitchell

All work shall be in accordance with the terms, stipulations, and
conditions of the ariginal Contract Documents. If the work herein
provided for is Approved by Change Order, the time of completion
will be:

X Increased O Decreased [ Unchanged

by 11 calendar days.

This change will: X Add [0 Deduct [J NoChange

$ 14,532.00

Engineer Recommendation:
X Recommend Acceptance
[0 Do Not Recommend Acceptance

/

Chad Mitchell

By: Andrea Wyatt, P.E.

Date  6/9/2021

Owner's Action:

O Accepted [J Not Accepted

General Contractor

Date June 4, 2021

By: Mike Moyer

Date




CHANGE PROPOSAL SUMMARY SHEET

CONSTRUCTION SERVICES LLC 7

Project Name: Reunion Ranch veve.:r
Change Description: Sewage Spill Feb

PCM No: 003 Date: June 4, 2021
|IMATERIALS!QUOTES: Amount Op Rate Extended ||
X 1 $0.00
Subtotal $0.00
Sales Tax $0.00 X 0.00% $0.00]
MATERIAL/QUOTES SUBTOTAL $0.00(|
LABOR: Hours Op Rate Extended ||
Straight Time Labor 386 X $25.00 $9,658.48
Overtime Labor: 0 X $37.50 $0.00
Subtotal Manhours: 0
Foreman Time (Lawrence Manning) : 0 X $35.00 $0.00
Assistant Superintendent; 0 X $0.00 $0.00
Superintendent Time (Brad Clark): 0 X $70.00 $0.00
Material Proc. & Hndlg. Labor (5% of Man Hours): 0 X $0.00 $0.00
Update As Built Drawings: 0 X $0.00 $0.00
|SUBTOTAI. LABOR: $9,658.48
DIRECT JOB EXPENSES: Amount Op Rate Extended |
Project Manager (Chad Mitchell): 0 X $0.00 $0.00
Jabsite Trailer (Monthly) $0.00 X 1 $0.00
Port-o-can (Monthly) $0.00 X 1 $0.00
Water (for injection) $0.00 X 1 $0.00
$0.00 2 $0.00
$0.00
EXCEL CONSTRUCTION MARKUPS: Amount Op Rate Extended |
Direct Costs: $9,658.48 X 1 $9,658.48
ork Comp / SS / Unemployment: $9,658.48 X 27.00% $2,607.79
$12,266.27
$12,266.27 X 15.00% $1,839.94
EXCEL CONSTRUCTION SUBTOTAL $14,106.21
[SUBCONTRACTS WITH MARKUPS: Amount Op Rate Extended ||
X 1 $0.00
X 1 $0.00
X 1 $0.00
X 1 $0.00
X 1 $0.00
X 1 $0.00
$0.00
$0.00 X 0.00% $0.00
[SUBCONTRACTS SUBTOTAL: $0.00]f
[SUBTOTAL / SUMMARY: Amount Op Rate Extended ||
Liability / Builders Risk (Cost of Work Only): $14,106.21 X 1.00% $141.06
SUBTOTAL (Excel Subtotal / Subcontracts / Builders Risk): $14,247.27
P&P Bond $14,247.27 X 2.00% $284.95
IGRAND TOTAL THIS CHANGE: $14,532




EXCEL)

CONSTRUCTION SERVICES LLC

May 11, 2021

Murfee Engineer Company

1101 Capital of Texas Highway South
Building D Suit 110

Austin Texas 78746

Attn: Andrea Wyatt P.E

Re: Reunion Ranch WWTP -PCM 003 — Winter Freeze and Sewage Spills

Ms. Wyatt P.E,

Please find attached the PCM 003 for the Winter Freeze and Sewage spills. Per your request,
Excel has included two PCM 003 Summary Sheets, one for the winter freeze and another for the
sewage spills. Along with the additional cost, Excel will be requesting additional time due to the
Winter Freeze and Sewage spills.

Winter Freeze

No work was performed from February 11, 2021, to February 21, 2021, due to to the winter
freeze. The event was unusual inclement weather, which is beyond the normal weather record
and expected weather for the Austin, Texas area. Ultimately the State of Texas declared this a
state of emergency for the area. Excel is requesting an additional 11 days for this unusual
inclement weather delay.

Excel returned to the site on February 22, 2021. At this time the spillage of raw sewage into our
newly poured SBR structures and excavation was not cleaned up and remained so until February
25,2021. During this time we were not able to perform normal work from the period of
February 22, 2021, to February 25, 2021. Sometime on late February 25, 2021, or early February
26, 2021, a potable water line broke. The line break once again flooded the newly poured SBR
structures and excavation. Excel repaired the line. During both of these events, no work was
performed onsite. Excel is requesting an additional 7 days for spillages which cost Excel
$14,673.00 in labor.

Plant Sewage Spills March, April and May.

During March, April, and May, the plant has spilled and flooded sewage 9 different times
throughout the job site. Each spill and flood has caused a delay to the project that stops the
normal schedule of work. Some of the direct activities that were affected by the spill are pouring
concrete, excavation, backfilling, density testing, pipe installation, and installation of electrical
duct banks. Furthermore, it has required Excel to pump, clean up and work in the affected areas

PO Box 2260, Leander, Texas 78646
1202 Leander Drive, Leander, Texas 78641
512.259.5005 512.259.5665
www.excelconstruction.com



of the sewage. In total the sewage spills caused a minimum of 31 days delay to the schedule
and cost Excel $26,767.00 in labor.

Along with the PCM 003 Change Proposal Sheet for Winter Freeze and Plant Sewage Spills, Excel
has included a Delay Summary detailing the days and activities that were directly affected by
spills. Excel has included February, March, April, and May calendars to show the spiliage dates.
These calendars also illustrate how the spills have led to a lack of production to complete the
project. Also, Excel is supplying a copy of the emails that were sent to notify all parties of all the
spillages and photographs of the spillages.

We are requesting a total of 49 days due to the above delays and $41,440 in costs. Also, it must
be noted that the above events only cover through May 3, 2021. Please review the attached
PCM 003 and let Excel know if you any questions concerning additional cost and time.

Sincerely,

CHuhed

Chad Mitchell
Project Manager.

PO Box 2260, Leander, Texas 78646
1202 Leander Drive, Leander, Texas 78641
512.259.5005 512.259.5665
www.excelconstruction.com



Delay Summary

Feb 11 -Feb 21 Winter Freeze

Feb 17 —~ Feb 25 — Raw Sewage Spill due to the Winter Freeze power lose. Delay Chlorine Contact Basin
slab pour. SBR flooded

Feb 26 - Potable Water Line Broke -Delay Chlorine Contact Basin slab pour. SBR flooded, Excel Repaired
Pipe

March 1-March 2 Effluent Lift Station Spill - Delay Chlorine Contact Basin slab pour. SBR flooded
March 11-12 - Effluent Lift Station Spill — Delay Placement of Grouting in Basin - SBR flooded
March 13-14 — Effluent Lift Station Spill - Delay Placement of Grouting in Basin -SBR flooded
March 14 - March 18- Effluent Lift Station Spill Sewage remained in SBR #2 Basin

March 30 — March 31st- Effluent Lift Station Spill - Flood Filter Area and SBR — Densities Delay
March 30 — April 5- Effluent Lift Station Spill Sewage remained in SBR #2 Basin

April 3@ — April 4th - Effluent Lift Station Spill - Flood Filter Area and SBR — Densities Delay

April 5" - April 8— Effluent Ground Storage Tanks - Flood Electrical Duct bank.

April 12~ April 13t -Effluent Lift Station Spill - Flood Filter Area and SBR — Densities Delay

April 16%™- April 21*" -Effluent Lift Station Spill - Flood Filter Area, SBR, Electrical Duct dank — Densities
Delay

May 3™ — Pipe Trench Flooding - Screen overflow flooded pipe trench. Excel pump back into existing
basin



MG 3N
HILVM 3719V.10d

8¢

aulq Jojep Jieday < 3)IS Uo Mai)
< i
Wv3ug INA wywawgannl S TdS 3OVYMIS MV
YILVYM 319V.10d Y31VM 319V10d 3Z3344 ¥ILNIM]|
L2 9C SZ ve 154 (44 Lz
< 9IS UO JoU MdI1)
< TdS IO9VMIS MV
< 373344 YIALNIM
| 0T 61 81l 4 91 gl 7l
< a}is uo maio
< 3Z33¥4 ¥ILNIM
€l el Ll ol (<] 8 V4
9 S 4 € 4 L
Aopinjpg Aoplig Appsinyj ADpPSSUP3aAA Appsany Appuoyy

Aopung

Ae|ap SBM YIOM |99X3 Yaiym ui skeq gL _H_




< AES NI
G3INIVNIY 3OVM3S
> T171dS NOILVLS
=3 1417 IN3INT1443
LE 0og 6C 8¢
a4 9cC ST 144 £e < Lc
e H4gS NI AaNIVINIY
JOVM3S 40 .9
TdS NOILLVLS
LdIT IN3IN1443
0C 61 81 Ll QI Sl ' rl
T1idS NOILVLS o T1idS NOILLVLS
1417 LN3N1d43 =3 1417 IN3N1d43
€l Ci LL ol 6 8 £
T17dS NOILVLS T1IdS NOILVLS
1417 IN3N1443 1417 IN3IN1443
9 S 4 € 4 L
Appiniog Appsiny] ARpPsaupapA Aopsan| Appuow Appung

Kejop sem yiom [99x3 ysiym ui sheq z| _H_




0¢ 62 8z /T T4 ST
> T71dS NOILV1S
1417 IN3NT443
ve £z ze 1z 0Z 61 81
2 T71dS NOILV1S e T7idS NOILVLS
1417 IN3n1443 3 1417 IN3NT1443
£l 9l Sl 7l £l zl . Ll 1
e ggS NI
d3NIVINTY 39VM3S
IOVTIIdS
< MNVL ININ1443
oL 116 8 VA 9 S 74
= EEER]
= a3aNIVAIY 3OVM3S
£ z L

Aopingpg Appiid Aopsinyj ARpPSaupPapA Appsan] Appuowy Aopung




6¢C

(44

Sl

Aopiniog

8¢

vl

Aoplig

LT

014

€l

Aopsiny)

9C

61

cl

ADPSSUPIAA

4

81l

LL

LE

v

L1

ol

MOTJH3A0 NIFAOS
g

Appsan| Appuow

o€

€¢

91

Appung




Delay Duration Feb 17th - Feb 25th

Chad Mitchell

From: Chad Mitchell

Sent: Monday, February 22, 2021 10:01 AM

To: Andrea Wyatt

Cc: Evan Parker; Brad Clark; Kevin Wenske; Kennis, Jesse
Subject: RE: Raw Sewage Spill

Andrea,

Following up on our conversation, the raw sewage spill did get into the new SBR basin. We are guessing there is about
5’ of sewage in the basin. This basin will need to be cleaned also. Because both basins are requiring cleaning, Excel
could begin pumping the remaining raw sewage from the chlorine contact basin excavation to the new SBR basin. This
will allow Inframark some time to arrange Wastewater Transport to remove the sewage and get the raw sewage off the
ground.

If this is the direction, RRWWTP, MEC, and Inframark would like to move, please send me written direction authorizing
Excel to pump the raw sewage into the SBR basin. Inframark will still bear all costs to remove and clean the sewage
from the basin and excavation.

As of note, the Chlorine Contact Basin slab was scheduled to be poured on 2/23/21 and the grout flooring was to be
poured on 2/26/21.

Thanks again,

Cliad Mitchell

Excel Construction Services, LLC
(512) 259-5005 Office

(512) 259-5665 Fax

(512) 945-3287 Mobile

From: Andrea Wyatt <awyatt@murfee.com>

Sent: Monday, February 22, 2021 7:04 AM

To: Chad Mitchell <Chad@excelconstruction.com>

Cc: Evan Parker <eparker@murfee.com>; Brad Clark <Brad@excelconstruction.com>; Kevin Wenske
<Kevin@excelconstruction.com>

Subject: RE: Raw Sewage Spill

Chad,

Thank you for the update on the extent of this spill. | will contact Inframark to determine their schedule.
Regards,

Andrea Wyatt, P.E.

Murfee Engineering Company
512-497-1491

From: Chad Mitchell [mailto:Chad@excelconstruction.com]
Sent: Monday, February 22, 2021 6:55 AM




To: Andrea Wyatt
Cc: Evan Parker; Brad Clark; Kevin Wenske
Subject: Raw Sewage Spill

Andrea,

To follow up on Jesse’s email from February 17, 2021, the winter storm affected the plant operation. Raw
sewage from the bar screen area overflowed into the new effluent structure and the chlorine contact
basin. The spill appears to fill the new effluent basin and chlorine contact basin. The attached photos were
taken on Saturday afternoon.

As of this morning, the raw sewage is still in the new effluent structure and the chlorine contact basin
excavation. The sewage spill will directly affecting our schedule and is causing a delay to the project. Excelis
assuming that the plant operator will remove the raw sewage, clean the basins and power wash the basins
and rebar. Before we can calculate the extent of the delay. Please get with Inframark and provide Excel with a
date when the raw sewage will be cleaned and removed from the site.

Thanks again,

Cliad MWitetell

Excel Construction Services, LLC
(512) 259-5005 Office

(512) 259-5665 Fax

(512) 945-3287 Mobile




"ﬂh s E-"‘:;&l

) yeadodly







Murfee €ngineering Compony

February 22, 2021

Via Emalil

Chad Mitchell

Excel Construction Services, LLC.
PO Box 2260

Leander, TX 78548

RE: Reunion Ranch WCID Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion
Winter Storm Wastewater Overflow Resolution
MEC File: 1202.108

Dear Mr. Mitchell,

The winter storm that took place from February 13 through 19" caused significant wastewater
overflow into the excavation in progress at the RRWWTP. Inframark is working to schedule Wastewater
Transport to pump and haul the overflow, however given the demand for Wastewater Transport’s
services it is uncertain how long it may take for them to fully remove all wastewater from the
excavation. Inframark and MEC recommend that Excel help where they can by pumping wastewater
from the excavated area into the concrete basins and pressure wash as needed in order to start working
on the construction tasks in an effort minimize delays related to the winter storm event. Excel should
carefully document costs associated with the cleanup effort in order to request reimbursement from
Inframark. Additionally, Excel should document the delays to their originally planned schedule.

Sincerely,

] i
! ! S
| fr_l‘l/ ol I ' {4

Andrea Wyatt, P.E.

1101 Capital of Texas Highway South « Building D, Suite 110 « Austin, Texas 78746 - 512/327-9204 - TBPE F353



Delay Duration Feb 26th

Chad Mitchell

From: Chad Mitchell

Sent: Friday, February 26, 2021 8:41 AM

To: Andrea Wyatt

Cc: Evan Parker; Brad Clark; Kevin Wenske; Kennis, Jesse; Michael Moyer; Michael Slack; Alek
Falkenbury

Subject: RE: Raw Sewage Spill

Attachments: IMG_1878.JPEG; IMG_0857.JPG; IMG_0858.JPG

Andrea,

It appears that a line broken broke last night and flooded our chlorine contract basin excavation and SBR basin
again. Please see attached picture.

Thanks again.

Cliad Mitetell

Excel Construction Services, LLC
(512) 259-5005 Office

(512) 259-5665 Fax

(512) 945-3287 Mobile







Chad Mitchell

From: Chad Mitchell

Sent: Friday, February 26, 2021 9:04 AM

To: Michael Moyer; Andrea Wyatt

Cc: Evan Parker; Brad Clark; Kevin Wenske; Kennis, Jesse; Michael Slack; Alek Falkenbury
Subject: RE: Raw Sewage Spill

Attachments: IMG_1878.JPEG

It appears to be the potable water line. We are trying to locate the line. The plant operator is on-site.

Cload Mctetell

Excel Construction Services, LLC
(512) 259-5005 Office

{512) 259-5665 Fax

(512) 945-3287 Mobile

From: Michael Moyer <MMoyer@taylormorrison.com>

Sent: Friday, February 26, 2021 8:58 AM

To: Andrea Wyatt <awyatt@murfee.com>; Chad Mitchell <Chad@excelconstruction.com>

Cc: Evan Parker <eparker@murfee.com>; Brad Clark <Brad@excelconstruction.com>; Kevin Wenske
<Kevin@excelconstruction.com>; Kennis, Jesse <Jesse.Kennis@inframark.com>; Michael Slack
<MSlack@taylormorrison.com>; Alek Falkenbury <afalkenbury@murfee.com>

Subject: RE: Raw Sewage Spill

Is that an irrigation line or effluent line that broke?

Michael Moyer
Land Development Director

T +15125322111 MMoyer@taylormorrison.com

www.taylormorrison.com

TaylorMorrison.
AR }ﬁglr?{sbn @'[}\\(:In}s wmﬁ Aif Eﬁglr?{son. & iseireo

This message may conlain confidential information and is intended only for the named addressee If you are not the named addressee you
should not distribute or copy this e-mail If you have received this e-mail by mistake please delete it from your system

From: Andrea Wyatt [mailto:awyatt@murfee.com]

Sent: Friday, February 26, 2021 8:46 AM

To: Chad Mitchell <Chad @excelconstruction.com>

Cc: Evan Parker <eparker@murfee.com>; Brad Clark <Brad @excelconstruction.com>; Kevin Wenske
<Kevin@excelconstruction.com>; Kennis, Jesse <Jesse Kennis@inframark.com>; Michael Moyer
<MMover@taylormorrison.com>; Michael Slack <MSlack@taylormaorrison.com>; Alek Falkenbury




<afalkenbury@murfee.com>
Subject: RE: Raw Sewage Spill

This message originated from outside of our organization

Chad,
Alright, thanks for the update. All we can do is work to get it cleaned up.
Jesse,

Have you been in contact with WWTS about getting some pumper trucks out to work on removing the water from the
basin and excavation?

Thanks,

Andrea Wyatt, P.E.
Murfee Engineering Company
512-497-1491

From: Chad Mitchell [mailto:Chad @excelconstruction.com]

Sent: Friday, February 26, 2021 8:41 AM

To: Andrea Wyatt

Cc: Evan Parker; Brad Clark; Kevin Wenske; Kennis, lesse; Michael Moyer; Michael Slack; Alek Falkenbury
Subject: RE: Raw Sewage Spill

Andrea,
It appears that a line broken broke last night and flooded our chlorine contract basin excavation and SBR basin
again. Please see attached picture.

Thanks again.

Cliad Mitetell

Excel Construction Services, LLC
(512) 259-5005 Office

(512) 259-5665 Fax

(512) 945-3287 Mobile

From: Andrea Wyatt <awyatt@murfee.com>

Sent: Monday, February 22, 2021 11:24 AM

To: Chad Mitchell <Chad@excelconstruction.com>

Cc: Evan Parker <egparker@murfee.com>; Brad Clark <Brad@excelconstruction.com>; Kevin Wenske
<Kevin@excelconstruction.com>; Kennis, Jesse <Jesse.Kennis@inframark.com>; Michael Moyer
<MMoyer@taylormorrison.com>; Michael Slack <MSlack@taylormorrison.com>; Alek Falkenbury
<afalkenbury@murfee.com>

Subject: RE: Raw Sewage Spill

Chad,



Please see attached letter. It sounds like WWTS was able to pump at least one load already, but who knows if they'll be
able to continue.

Regards,

Andrea Wyatt, P.E.
Murfee Engineering Company
512-497-1491

From: Chad Mitchell [mailto:Chad @excelconstruction.com]
Sent: Monday, February 22, 2021 10:01 AM

To: Andrea Wyatt

Cc: Evan Parker; Brad Clark; Kevin Wenske; Kennis, Jesse
Subject: RE: Raw Sewage Spill

Andrea,

Following up on our conversation, the raw sewage spill did get into the new SBR basin. We are guessing there is about
5’ of sewage in the basin. This basin will need to be cleaned also. Because both basins are requiring cleaning, Excel
could begin pumping the remaining raw sewage from the chlorine contact basin excavation to the new SBR basin. This
will allow Inframark some time to arrange Wastewater Transport to remove the sewage and get the raw sewage off the
ground.

If this is the direction, RRWWTP, MEC, and Inframark would like to move, please send me written direction authorizing
Excel to pump the raw sewage into the SBR basin. Inframark will still bear all costs to remove and clean the sewage
from the basin and excavation.

As of note, the Chlorine Contact Basin slab was scheduled to be poured on 2/23/21 and the grout flooring was to be
poured on 2/26/21.

Thanks again,

Cliad Tetehell

Excel Construction Services, LLC
(512) 259-5005 Office

(512) 259-5665 Fax

(512) 945-3287 Mobile

From: Andrea Wyatt <awyatt@murfee.com>

Sent: Monday, February 22, 2021 7:04 AM

To: Chad Mitchell <Chad @excelconstruction.com>

Cc: Evan Parker <eparker@murfee.com>; Brad Clark <Brad@excelconstruction.com>; Kevin Wenske
<Kevin@excelconstruction.com>

Subject: RE: Raw Sewage Spill

Chad,
Thank you for the update on the extent of this spill. | will contact Inframark to determine their schedule.

Regards,



Andrea Wyatt, P.E.
Murfee Engineering Company
512-497-1491

From: Chad Mitchell [mailto:Chad @excelconstruction.com]
Sent: Monday, February 22, 2021 6:55 AM

To: Andrea Wyatt

Cc: Evan Parker; Brad Clark; Kevin Wenske

Subject: Raw Sewage Spill

Andrea,

To follow up on Jesse’s email from February 17, 2021, the winter storm affected the plant operation. Raw
sewage from the bar screen area overflowed into the new effluent structure and the chlorine contact
basin. The spill appears to fill the new effluent basin and chlorine contact basin. The attached photos were
taken on Saturday afternoon.

As of this morning, the raw sewage is still in the new effluent structure and the chlorine contact basin
excavation. The sewage spill will directly affecting our schedule and is causing a delay to the project. Excel is
assuming that the plant operator will remove the raw sewage, clean the basins and power wash the basins
and rebar. Before we can calculate the extent of the delay. Please get with Inframark and provide Excel with a
date when the raw sewage will be cleaned and removed from the site.

Thanks again,

Cliad Metetell

Excel Construction Services, LLC
(512) 259-5005 Office

{512) 259-5665 Fax

(512) 945-3287 Mobile



Delay Duration March 1st

Chad Mitchell

From: Chad Mitchell

Sent: Monday, March 1, 2021 8:16 AM

To: Michael Moyer; Willeford, Zachary; clayton@perfectcutsinc.com

Cc: Kennis, Jesse; Andrea Wyatt; Evan Parker; Brad Clark; Kevin Wenske; Michael Slack; Alek
Falkenbury; Sibole, Robert; Roberts, Melissa

Subject: RE: Raw Sewage Spill

Attachments: IMG_1881.JPEG; IMG_1882.JPEG

Andrea,

It appears the basins and chlorine contact excavation flooded again over the weekend. We believe the cause of the
flooding is from the effluent lift station. Please see attached picture.

We have rescheduled the rebar inspection to Tuesday, March 2" and will still try to pour the chlorine contact basin slab
on March 3, 2021. | will let you know the effects of the schedule.

Thanks again.

Chliad THitehell

Excel Construction Services, LLC
(512) 259-5005 Office

(512) 259-5665 Fax

(512) 945-3287 Mobile






Delay Duration March 2nd

From: Brad Clark <Brad@excelconstruction.com>

Sent: Tuesday, March 2, 2021 7:22 AM

To: Chad Mitchell <Chad@excelconstruction.com>; Michael Moyer <MMoyer@taylormorrison.com>; Willeford, Zachary
<Zachary.Willeford@inframark.com>; clayton@perfectcutsinc.com

Cc: Kennis, Jesse <Jesse.Kennis@inframark.com>; Andrea Wyatt <awyatt@murfee.com>; Evan Parker
<eparker@murfee.com>; Kevin Wenske <Kevin@excelconstruction.com>; Michael Slack
<MSlack@taylormorrison.com>; Alek Falkenbury <afalkenbury@murfee.com>; Sibole, Robert
<Robert.Sibole@inframark.com>; Roberts, Melissa <missy.roberts@inframark.com>

Subject: RE: Raw Sewage Spill

Good morning all,
We are flooded again here at Reunion Ranch!

Brad Clark

Excel Construction Services,LLC
(512) 259-5005 Office

(512) 259-5665 Fax

(512) 415-1462 Cell




Delay Duration March 11th and March 12th

Chad Mitchell

From: Chad Mitchell

Sent: Thursday, March 11, 2021 8:03 AM

To: Brad Clark; Michael Moyer; Willeford, Zachary; clayton@perfectcutsinc.com

Cc: Kennis, Jesse; Andrea Wyatt; Evan Parker; Kevin Wenske; Michael Slack; Alek Falkenbury;
Sibole, Robert; Roberts, Melissa

Subject: Sewage Spill 3-11-21

All,

Currently, the effluent lift station is overflowing and spilling into our SBR structure and Chlorine Contact Basin
excavation. The plant operator has been called. Please make arrangements to clean the spillage up.

Thanks again






i o ) . \ . _q.'; ‘.{‘
= Lumﬁ VL IR A

i .‘




Delay Duration March 13th- 18th

Chad Mitchell

From: Chad Mitchell

Sent: Thursday, March 18, 2021 12:39 PM

To: Brad Clark; 'Michael Moyer"; 'Willeford, Zachary'; ‘clayton@perfectcutsinc.com'

Cc: '‘Kennis, Jesse'; ‘Andrea Wyatt'; 'Evan Parker'; Kevin Wenske; 'Michael Slack’; *Alek
Falkenbury'; 'Sibole, Robert'; ‘Roberts, Melissa'; 'kristi.hester@inframark.com'

Subject: RE: Sewage Spill 3-14-21

Evan or Zach,

Jesse informed Brad on Monday that there was another effluent sewage spill on March 14" and a vacuum
truck would be here on either Tuesday or Wednesday to clean the remaining sewage from the March 11th
spill and newly spilled sewage from March 14t . As of this morning, the sewage remains in the new SBR unit.

We cannot schedule the grout topping work, interior coating work, or any other interior SBR work until the
spillage is cleaned up. Can you let us know when the sewage will be removed?

Thanks again,

Chliad Tetehell

Excel Construction Services, LLC
(512) 259-5005 Office

(512) 259-5665 Fax

(512) 945-3287 Mobile



Delay Duration March 30th to April 5th

Chad Mitchell

———

From: Chad Mitchell

Sent: Wednesday, March 31, 2021 12:47 PM

To: Kennis, Jesse; Brad Clark; Michael Moyer; Willeford, Zachary;
clayton@perfectcutsinc.com

Cc: Andrea Wyatt; Evan Parker; Kevin Wenske; Michael Slack; Alek Falkenbury; Sibole,
Robert; Roberts, Melissa

Subject: RE: Sewage Spill 3-11-21

Attachments: IMG_1929.JPEG; IMG_1931.JPEG; IMG_1930.JPEG

All,

The effluent lift station spilled sewage into the new SBR structure and Chlorine Contact Basin/ filter pad area this
morning. Currently, we are pumping the sewage back into the existing SBR basin from the filter pad area. However,
we had to cancel the densities schedule for today until the sewage is removed from the filter pad area.

The plant operator was notified. Please make arrangements to clean the spillage up from the SBR.

Cliad Witetell

Excel Construction Services, LLC
(512) 259-5005 Office

(512) 259-5665 Fax

(512) 945-3287 Mobile







Chad Mitchell

From: Chad Mitchell

Sent: Thursday, April 1, 2021 10:05 PM

To: Michael Moyer

Cc: Andrea Wyatt, P.E.; Evan Parker; Brad Clark
Subject: Re: Sewage Spill 3-11-21

Michael,

There are several reasons why the spills are happening. The mixers lost power, the bar screen clogged, effluent pumps
stopped working, VFDs went hay wire, the SBR did not decant peoperly, and the loss of power. Infrmark can give you a
more detailed explanation of each of these issues.

Yes, this has had major effects on the schedule this past month and a half. Currently, we are 30 plus days in delays.
Andrea asked us to track the delays. We are to the point we can submit the claim and the adjusted schedule for MEC
review.

Thanks again,
Chad
Get Qutlook for i0OS

From: Michael Moyer <MMoyer@taylormorrison.com>
Sent: Thursday, April 1, 2021 8:33:42 PM

To: Chad Mitchell <Chad@excelconstruction.com>
Subject: RE: Sewage Spill 3-11-21

Thanks Chad. What impact if any has/will this have on your schedule? Any ideas why this keeps happening?

Michael Moyer
Land Development Director

T: +15125322111 MMoyer@taylormorrison.com

www.taylormorrison.com

TaylorMorrison.
AR 1280 T A ERon,  Minsereo

This message may contain confidential information and is intended only for the named addressee If you are not the named addressee you
should not distribute or copy this e-mail If you have received this e-mail by mistake please delete it from your system

From: Chad Mitchell <Chad@excelconstruction.com>

Sent: Wednesday, March 31, 2021 12:47 PM

To: Kennis, Jesse <Jesse.Kennis@inframark.com>; Brad Clark <Brad@excelconstruction.com>; Michael Moyer
<MMoyer@taylormorrison.com>; Willeford, Zachary <Zachary.Willeford@inframark.com>; clayton@perfectcutsinc.com
Cc: Andrea Wyatt <awyatt@murfee.com>; Evan Parker <eparker@murfee.com>; Kevin Wenske
<Kevin@excelconstruction.com>; Michael Slack <MSlack@taylormorrison.com>; Alek Falkenbury

1



Delay Duration April 5th to April 8th

Chad Mitchell

From: Chad Mitchell

Sent: Monday, April 5, 2021 9:50 AM

To: Kennis, Jesse; Brad Clark; Michael Moyer; Willeford, Zachary

Cc: Andrea Wyatt; Evan Parker; Kevin Wenske; Michael Slack; Alek Falkenbury; Sibole,
Robert; Roberts, Melissa; kristi.hester@inframark.com

Subject: Effluent Spill 4-5-21

Attachments: IMG_1438,jpg; IMG_1439.jpg; IMG_1440.MOV; IMG_1443 jpg; IMG_1445.jpg

All,

The effluent ground storage tank spilled treated sewage into the new electrical duct bank morning. Currently, we are
pumping the treated sewage back into the existing SBR basin. However, we have canceled the densities schedule for
today and rescheduled the duct bank pour until the area is cleaned up.

Also, the new SBR still has sewage in the basin from the 3/31/21 spill. Please make arrangements to clean the spillage
up from the SBR.

Please see attached photos.
Thanks again,

Excel Construction Services, LLC
(512) 259-5005 Office

(512) 259-5665 Fax
(512) 945-3287 Mobile



Chad Mitchell

From: Gabe Cantu <GCantu@moralescompany.com>

Sent: Friday, April 9, 2021 3:57 PM

To: Chad Mitchell

Cc: Marcus Gonzalez; Jaime Ramirez; Brad Clark

Subject: Reunion Ranch - Underground Ductbank

Attachments: 11 - Ductbank Around Effluent Tank - 04.09.21.jpg; 10 - Ductbank Around Effluent Tank
- 04.09.21,jpg

Chad,

Please see the attached pictures of the progress TMC has made with the underground going around the existing effluent
tank. Please be advised, that if the existing effluent storage tank overflows again and causes our ditch to be flooded then
we will once again have a delay in our schedule. | know you are aware of this but | wanted to inform you how much
progress TMC has made since cleaning out the last time the effluent tank flooded our ductbank. Please feel free to
contact me if you have any questions or concerns regarding the contents of this email, thanks.

Respectfully,

Gabe Cantu

T. Morales Company (TECL 17189)
211 Elmhurst Drive, Suite C

Kyle, TX 78640

Office — (512) 504-3951

Mobile —(512) 573-0527
gcantu@moralescompany.com

Important/Confidential: This communication and any files or documents attached to it are intended only for the use of
the person or entity to which it is addressed. This communication contains information that may be privileged,
confidential and exempt from disclosure under applicable law. If you are not the intended recipient of this
communication, you are hereby notified that the copying, distribution or other use of this communication is strictly
prohibited. If you have received this communication by mistake, please notify the sender immediately by electronic mail
and destroy all forms of this communication (electronic or paper). Thank you.









Delay Duration April 12th to April 13th

Chad Mitchell

From: Chad Mitchell

Sent: Monday, April 12, 2021 10:10 AM

To: Kennis, Jesse; Brad Clark; Michael Moyer; Willeford, Zachary

Cc: Andrea Wyatt; Evan Parker; Michael Slack; Alek Falkenbury; Sibole, Robert; Roberts,
Melissa; kristi.hester@inframark.com

Subject: RE: Effluent Spill 4-11-21

All,

The effluent lift station spilled sewage into the new Filter Slab Excavation, Chlorine Contact Excavation, and SBR
Excavation. The sewage was pumped out sometime over the weekend. However, the sewage spill causes Excel to fail
our densities this morning. We will reschedule the densities once the area is dry. Also, due to the continual spillages,
we have to reschedule the filter equipment and SBR equipment delivery until the end of the month.

Thanks again,






.‘.‘ . L "
i, ST
R

TR










Delay Duration April 16th to April 21st

Chad Mitchell

From: Chad Mitchell

Sent: Friday, April 16, 2021 8:52 AM

To: Kennis, Jesse; Brad Clark; Michael Moyer; Willeford, Zachary

Cc: Andrea Wyatt; Evan Parker; Michael Slack; Alek Falkenbury; Sibole, Robert; Roberts,
Melissa; kristi.hester@inframark.com

Subject: Effluent Spill 4-16-21

Attachments: 4-16-21 flood 3jpg.jpg; 4-16-21 flood 2.jpg; 4-16-21 flood 1.jpg

All,

The effluent lift station spilled sewage into the new Filter Slab Excavation, Chlorine Contact Excavation, and SBR
Excavation. It is our understanding that Inframark has arranged to have the sewage spill cleaned up. See attached
photos.

Cliad Mlctetell

Excel Construction Services, LLC
(512) 259-5005 Office

(512) 259-5665 Fax

(512) 945-3287 Mobile







Chad Mitchell

From: Gabe Cantu <GCantu@moralescompany.com>
Sent: Monday, April 19, 2021 1:00 PM

To: Chad Mitchell

Cc: Brad Clark; Marcus Gonzalez; Jaime Ramirez
Subject: Reunion Ranch - Raw Sewage Flooding Ductbanks
Chad,

As you are aware TMC's Onsite Superintendent Marcus Gonzalez informed me today that there was another flood that
occurred at the Reunion Ranch WWTP Site, which caused raw sewage to run and flood areas that were excavated for
our electrical ductbanks. This is now the second incident of hazardous flooding that the owner has been more than
aware of and is now starting to effect TMC’s work schedule. Please be advised, TMC will not force our field staff to work
in areas that have been exposed to hazardous waste until these locations can be sanitized and cleaned in a manner
deemed fitting to work in again. TMC estimates that it will to take at least three full work days to have time to complete
the cleaning process, which will create an increase in price of additional time and material for this procedure. In addition
due to this flood TMC is now forced to keep rental equipment onsite longer than originally anticipated. TMC expects the
owner to cover these additional cost since it is their equipment/plant that has failed countless times to provide us with
adequate working conditions hindering TMC to perform our scope of work in a timely manner.

Respectfully,

Gabe Cantu

T. Morales Company (TECL 17189)
211 Elmhurst Drive, Suite C

Kyle, TX 78640

Office — (512) 504-3951

Mobile — (512) 573-0527
gecantu@moralescompany.com

Important/Confidential: This communication and any files or documents attached to it are intended only for the use of
the person or entity to which it is addressed. This communication contains information that may be privileged,
confidential and exempt from disclosure under applicable law. If you are not the intended recipient of this
communication, you are hereby notified that the copying, distribution or other use of this communication is strictly
prohibited. If you have received this communication by mistake, please notify the sender immediately by electronic mail
and destroy all forms of this communication {electronic or paper). Thank you.



Delay Duration May 3rd

Chad Mitchell

From: Chad Mitchell

Sent: Tuesday, May 4, 2021 3:24 PM
To: Chad Mitchell

Subject: Sewage floo

Evan,

This spill happen to day. Any word when the plant is going to install the new SCADA system?

Get Outlook for iOS




CONSTRULCTION SEAVICES LLC )‘:".

Change Proposal Request No.004
(Not a Change Order)

Project Name:

Reunion Ranch WWTP

Expansion
Project Owner: Taylor Morrison
Engineer: MEC Initiated by: O Engineer X Contractor

. Excel Construction Services, LLC Date: 4 2021
Contractor: PO Box 2260 ate: June 4, 20
Leander, Texas 78646
Attention: The following change in the contract on this project is proposed. Please provide your proposed price for the

cost of this change.
o A breakdown of cost SHALL be provided upon request by the Owner or Engineer.
e Work shall not commence until authorized by the Owner.

Description of the Proposed Change:

Additional cost and days related to Plant Spillage.

By _Chad Mitchell

All work shall be in accordance with the terms, stipulations, and
conditions of the original Contract Documents. If the work herein
provided for is Approved by Change Order, the time of completion
will be:

B4 Increased [0 Decreased O Unchanged

by 31 calendar days.

This change will: X Add [0 Deduct [J NoChange

$ 26,510.00

Engineer Recommendation:
(X Recommend Acceptance
[0 Do Not Recommend Acceptance

Chad Mitchell

By: Andrea Wyatt, P.E.

Date  6/8/2021

Owner's Action:

O Accepted [0 Not Accepted

General Contractor

Date June 4, 2021

By: Mike Moyer

Date




CHANGE PROPOSAL SUMMARY SHEET

EXCEL)

CONSTRUCTION SERVICES LLC &

Project Name: Reunion Ranch vees:r

Change Description: Sewage Spill MARCH, APRIL and MAY

PCM No: 004 Date: June 4, 2021
||MATERIALSICIUOTES: Amount Op Rate Extended ||
X 1 $0.00
Subtotal $0.00
Sales Tax $0.00 X 0.00% $0.00
[MATERIALIQUOTES SUBTOTAL $0.00|
LABOR: Hours Op Rate Extended |
Straight Time Labor March 354 X $20.74 $7,341.25
Straight Time Labor April 460 X $20.74 $9,543.62
Straight Time Labor May 34 X $21.67 $734.13
Overtime Labor: 0 X $37.50 $0.00
Subtotal Manhours: 0 $17,619.00
Foreman Time (Lawrence Manning) : 0 X $35.00 $0.00
ssistant Superintendent: 0 X $0.00 $0.00
Superintendent Time (Brad Clark): 0 X $70.00 $0.00
Material Proc. & Hndlg. Labor (5% of Man Hours): 0 X $0.00 $0.00
Update As Built Drawings: 0 X $0.00 $0.00
[SUBTOTAL LABOR: $17,619.00]
|DIRE.CT JOB EXPENSES: Amount Op Rate Extended ||
Project Manager (Chad Mitchell): 0 X $0.00 $0.00
Jobsite Trailer (Monthly) $0.00 X 1 $0.00
Port-o-can (Monthly) $0.00 X 1 $0.00
Water (for injection) $0.00 X 1 $0.00
Backhoe (weekl $0.00 2 $0.00
SUBTOTAL DIRECT JOB EXPENSES: $0.00|
|EXCEL CONSTRUCTION MARKUPS: Amount Op Rate Extended ||
Direct Costs: $17,619.00 X 1 $1 ?.619.00l
Work Comp / SS / Unemployment: $17,619.00 X 27.00% $4,757.13
SUBTOTAL $22,376.12
OH&P @ 15%: $22,376.12 X 15.00% $3,356.42
[EXCEL CONSTRUCTION SUBTOTAL: $25,732.54
[SUBCONTRACTS WITH MARKUPS: Amount Op Rate Extended ||
X 1 $0.00
X 1 $0.00
X 1 $0.00
X 1 $0.00
X 1 $0.00
X 1 $0.00
SUBTOTAL: $0.00
OH&P @ 5% $0.00 X 0.00% $0.00
[SUBCONTRACTS SUBTOTAL: 50.00](
[SUBTOTAL / SUMMARY: Amount Op Rate Extended |
Liability / Builders Risk (Cost of Work Only): $25,732.54 X 1.00% $257.33
SUBTOTAL (Excel Subtotal / Subcontracts / Builders Risk): $25,989.87
P&P Bond $25,989.87 X 2.00% $519.80
[GRAND TOTAL THIS CHANGE: $26,510|




EXCEL"

CONSTRUCTION SERVICES LLC

May 11, 2021

Murfee Engineer Company

1101 Capital of Texas Highway South
Building D Suit 110

Austin Texas 78746

Attn: Andrea Wyatt P.E

Re: Reunion Ranch WWTP -PCM 003 — Winter Freeze and Sewage Spills

Ms. Wyatt P.E,

Please find attached the PCM 003 for the Winter Freeze and Sewage spills. Per your request,
Excel has included two PCM 003 Summary Sheets, one for the winter freeze and another for the
sewage spills. Along with the additional cost, Excel will be requesting additional time due to the
Winter Freeze and Sewage spills.

Winter Freeze

No work was performed from February 11, 2021, to February 21, 2021, due to to the winter
freeze. The event was unusual inclement weather, which is beyond the normal weather record
and expected weather for the Austin, Texas area. Ultimately the State of Texas declared this a
state of emergency for the area. Excel is requesting an additional 11 days for this unusual
inclement weather delay.

Excel returned to the site on February 22, 2021. At this time the spillage of raw sewage into our
newly poured SBR structures and excavation was not cleaned up and remained so until February
25, 2021. During this time we were not able to perform normal work from the period of
February 22, 2021, to February 25, 2021. Sometime on late February 25, 2021, or early February
26, 2021, a potable water line broke. The line break once again flooded the newly poured SBR
structures and excavation. Excel repaired the line. During both of these events, no work was
performed onsite. Excel is requesting an additional 7 days for spillages which cost Excel
$14,673.00 in labor.

Plant Sewage Spills March, April and May.

During March, April, and May, the plant has spilled and flooded sewage 9 different times
throughout the job site. Each spill and flood has caused a delay to the project that stops the
normal schedule of work. Some of the direct activities that were affected by the spill are pouring
concrete, excavation, backfilling, density testing, pipe installation, and installation of electrical
duct banks. Furthermore, it has required Excel to pump, clean up and work in the affected areas

PO Box 2260, Leander, Texas 78646
1202 Leander Drive, Leander, Texas 78641
512.259.5005 512.259.5665
www.excelconstruction.com



A

of the sewage. In total the sewage spills caused a minimum of 31 days delay to the schedule
and cost Excel $26,767.00 in labor.

Along with the PCM 003 Change Proposal Sheet for Winter Freeze and Plant Sewage Spills, Excel
has included a Delay Summary detailing the days and activities that were directly affected by
spills. Excel has included February, March, April, and May calendars to show the spillage dates.
These calendars also illustrate how the spills have led to a lack of production to complete the
project. Also, Excel is supplying a copy of the emails that were sent to notify all parties of all the
spillages and photographs of the spillages.

We are requesting a total of 49 days due to the above delays and $41,440 in costs. Also, it must
be noted that the above events only cover through May 3, 2021. Please review the attached
PCM 003 and let Excel know if you any questions concerning additional cost and time.

Sincerely,

(i

Chad Mitchell
Project Manager.

PO Box 2260, Leander, Texas 78646
1202 Leander Drive, Leander, Texas 78641
512.259.5005 512.259.5665
www.excelconstruction.com



Delay Summary

Feb 11 -Feb 21 Winter Freeze

Feb 17 — Feb 25 — Raw Sewage Spill due to the Winter Freeze power lose. Delay Chlorine Contact Basin
slab pour. SBR flooded

Feb 26 - Potable Water Line Broke -Delay Chlorine Contact Basin slab pour. SBR flooded, Excel Repaired
Pipe

March 1-March 2 Effluent Lift Station Spill - Delay Chlorine Contact Basin slab pour. SBR flooded
March 11-12 — Effluent Lift Station Spill — Delay Placement of Grouting in Basin - SBR flooded
March 13-14 — Effluent Lift Station Spill - Delay Placement of Grouting in Basin -SBR flooded
March 14 - March 18- Effluent Lift Station Spill Sewage remained in SBR #2 Basin

March 30 — March 31st- Effluent Lift Station Spill - Flood Filter Area and SBR — Densities Delay
March 30 — April 5- Effluent Lift Station Spill Sewage remained in SBR #2 Basin

April 3 — April 4th - Effluent Lift Station Spill - Flood Filter Area and SBR — Densities Delay

April 5™ - April 8- Effluent Ground Storage Tanks - Flood Electrical Duct bank.

April 12%"- April 13" -Effluent Lift Station Spill - Flood Filter Area and SBR — Densities Delay

April 16™- April 21'" -Effluent Lift Station Spill - Flood Filter Area, SBR, Electrical Duct dank — Densities
Delay

May 3™ — Pipe Trench Flooding - Screen overflow flooded pipe trench. Excel pump back into existing
basin



MV3IH4 INIT

¥I1VM 3719V10d
8¢
auiq Jejep Jieday < 9)IS UO M3I)
<
Mv3dd 3ANIT Mv3dd 3NI1 >3 TIidS 39VMIS MV
¥31VM 319v.L0d ¥3LvM 318v.L0d 3Z3384 YILNIM
LE 9C 554 e 4 44 LIE
< 9)IS UO JOoUu Ma1)
< T11dS 39VMIAS MVY
JZ3384 ¥ILNIM
| OC 61 81 4 91 Sl 7l
< 3}IS U0 M3al1)
< JZ334d ¥ILNIM
€l Zl Ll ol 6 8 L
9 S 14 € (% L
Appiniog Aopliy Appsiny| ADpPSaupsSAA Appsan] Appuowy Appung




iz ¥dS NI
=3 QaNIVINZH IOYM3S
- 17IdS NOILVYLS
cal 1417 1IN3N1443
LE o€ 6C 8¢
a4 e T4 ve |44 (44 L
< H9S NI AaNIVNIY
JOVYM3S 40 .9
T17IdS NOILVIS
1dIT IN3IN13d43
0¢ 61 81 VA 91l Gl vl
T111dS NOILV1S . T171dS NOILVLS
1417 1N3N1443 o~ 1417 IN3N1443
gl (4! LL ol 6 8 z
T171dS NOILLVLS 171dS NOILVYLS
1417 LN3IN1443 1417 IN3N1443
9 S 4 € 4 L
Aopinipg Appsiny] ARPSBUPIAA Appsan] Appuow Apopung

1C0C

TESTATY

Kejop sem yiom [99x3 ysiym ui sheqg zi _H_




0ot 6C 8¢ yA4 9C S¢C
< 17IdS NOILV1S
1417 LIN3INT443
ve £C 44 LT 0T 61 8l
< T17IdS NOILYLS — 11IdS NOILVLS
L1417 IN3N1443 = 1417 IN3NT1443
Ll 9L Sl 4! €l el Ll )
< ggS NI
G3aNIVIATYE 3OVM3S
JOVTIdS
< MNVL IN3INT443
0l 6 8 y4 9 S 4
— gas NI
e Q3NIVINIY 3OVMES
£ [4 L
Aopiniog AoplLiy Appsiny) ADpssupapn Aopsen] Appuoyy Appung




6¢

[4¢

Sl

AppJiniog

8¢

vl

Aopiiy

Y44

(014

€l

Appsiny]

9c

61

cl

ADPSSUPSAA

(4

8l

L1

Appsan]

LE

144

Z1

ol

MOTJAIAO N3OS
£

Appuow

0t

£C

9l

Appung




Delay Duration Feb 17th - Feb 25th

Chad Mitchell

From: Chad Mitchell

Sent: Monday, February 22, 2021 10:01 AM

To: Andrea Wyatt

Cc: Evan Parker; Brad Clark; Kevin Wenske; Kennis, Jesse
Subject: RE: Raw Sewage Spill

Andrea,

Following up on our conversation, the raw sewage spill did get into the new SBR basin. We are guessing there is about
5’ of sewage in the basin. This basin will need to be cleaned also. Because both basins are requiring cleaning, Excel
could begin pumping the remaining raw sewage from the chlorine contact basin excavation to the new SBR basin. This
will allow Inframark some time to arrange Wastewater Transport to remove the sewage and get the raw sewage off the
ground.

If this is the direction, RRWWTP, MEC, and Inframark would like to move, please send me written direction authorizing
Excel to pump the raw sewage into the SBR basin. Inframark will still bear all costs to remove and clean the sewage
from the basin and excavation.

As of note, the Chlorine Contact Basin slab was scheduled to be poured on 2/23/21 and the grout flooring was to be
poured on 2/26/21.

Thanks again,

Cliad THeitetell

Excel Construction Services, LLC
(512) 259-5005 Office

(512) 259-5665 Fax

(512) 945-3287 Mobile

From: Andrea Wyatt <awyatt@murfee.com>

Sent: Monday, February 22, 2021 7:04 AM

To: Chad Mitchell <Chad @excelconstruction.com>

Cc: Evan Parker <eparker@murfee.com>; Brad Clark <Brad@excelconstruction.com>; Kevin Wenske
<Kevin@excelconstruction.com>

Subject: RE: Raw Sewage Spill

Chad,

Thank you for the update on the extent of this spill. | will contact Inframark to determine their schedule.
Regards,

Andrea Wyatt, P.E.

Murfee Engineering Company
512-497-1491

From: Chad Mitchell [mailto:Chad@excelconstruction.com]
Sent: Monday, February 22, 2021 6:55 AM




To: Andrea Wyatt
Cc: Evan Parker; Brad Clark; Kevin Wenske
Subject: Raw Sewage Spill

Andrea,

To follow up on Jesse’s email from February 17, 2021, the winter storm affected the plant operation. Raw
sewage from the bar screen area overflowed into the new effluent structure and the chlorine contact
basin. The spill appears to fill the new effluent basin and chlorine contact basin. The attached photos were
taken on Saturday afternoon.

As of this morning, the raw sewage is still in the new effluent structure and the chlorine contact basin
excavation. The sewage spill will directly affecting our schedule and is causing a delay to the project. Excel is
assuming that the plant operator will remove the raw sewage, clean the basins and power wash the basins
and rebar. Before we can calculate the extent of the delay. Please get with Inframark and provide Excel with a
date when the raw sewage will be cleaned and removed from the site.

Thanks again,

Cload Wetetell

Excel Construction Services, LLC
(512) 259-5005 Office

(512) 259-5665 Fax

(512) 945-3287 Mobile










Murfee €ngineering Compory

February 22, 2021

Via Email

Chad Mitchell

Excel Construction Services, LLC.
PO Box 2260

Leander, TX 78548

RE: Reunion Ranch WCID Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion
Winter Storm Wastewater Overflow Resolution
MEC File: 1202.108

Dear Mr. Mitchell,

The winter storm that took place from February 13" through 19 caused significant wastewater
overflow into the excavation in progress at the RRWWTP. Inframark is working to schedule Wastewater
Transport to pump and haul the overflow, however given the demand for Wastewater Transport’s
services it is uncertain how long it may take for them to fully remove all wastewater from the
excavation. Inframark and MEC recommend that Excel help where they can by pumping wastewater
from the excavated area into the concrete basins and pressure wash as needed in order to start working
on the construction tasks in an effort minimize delays related to the winter storm event. Excel should
carefully document costs associated with the cleanup effort in order to request reimbursement from
Inframark. Additionally, Excel should document the delays to their originally planned schedule.

Sincerely,

/14 4/(1 Vi A

Andrea Wyatt, P.E.

1101 Capital of Texas Highway South - Building P, Suite 110 « Austin, Texas 78746 + 512/327-9204 - TBPE F353



Delay Duration Feb 26th

Chad Mitchell

_—

From: Chad Mitchell

Sent: Friday, February 26, 2021 8:41 AM

To: Andrea Wyatt

Cc: Evan Parker; Brad Clark; Kevin Wenske; Kennis, Jesse; Michael Moyer; Michael Slack; Alek
Falkenbury

Subject: RE: Raw Sewage Spill

Attachments: IMG_1878.JPEG; IMG_0857.JPG; IMG_0858.JPG

Andrea,

It appears that a line broken broke last night and flooded our chlorine contract basin excavation and SBR basin
again. Please see attached picture.

Thanks again.

Cliad Mitehell

Excel Construction Services, LLC
(512) 259-5005 Office

(512) 259-5665 Fax

(512) 945-3287 Mobile




' -'l"{"ﬂ ]

L
i'|;.r B
r‘;'l-rl' N\




Chad Mitchell

From: Chad Mitchell

Sent: Friday, February 26, 2021 9:04 AM

To: Michael Moyer; Andrea Wyatt

Cc: Evan Parker; Brad Clark; Kevin Wenske; Kennis, Jesse; Michael Slack; Alek Falkenbury
Subject: RE: Raw Sewage Spill

Attachments: IMG_1878.JPEG

It appears to be the potable water line. We are trying to locate the line. The plant operator is on-site.

Cliad MWitetell

Excel Construction Services, LLC
(512) 259-5005 Office

(512) 259-5665 Fax

(512) 945-3287 Mobile

From: Michael Moyer <MMoyer@taylormorrison.com>

Sent: Friday, February 26, 2021 8:58 AM

To: Andrea Wyatt <awyatt@murfee.com>; Chad Mitchell <Chad@excelconstruction.com>

Cc: Evan Parker <eparker@murfee.com>; Brad Clark <Brad@excelconstruction.com>; Kevin Wenske
<Kevin@excelconstruction.com>; Kennis, Jesse <Jesse.Kennis@inframark.com>; Michael Slack
<MSlack@taylormorrison.com>; Alek Falkenbury <afalkenbury@murfee.com>

Subject: RE: Raw Sewage Spill

Is that an irrigation line or effluent line that broke?

Michael Moyer
Land Development Director

T: +15125322111 MMoyer@taylormorrison.com

www.taylormorrison.com

TaylorMorrison,
M SR8 Ron, O lhling TR Ao, Boneo

This message may contain confidential information and is intended only for the named addressee If you are nol the named addressee you
should not distribute or copy this e-mail If you have received this e-mail by mistake please delete it from your system

From: Andrea Wyatt [mailto:awyatt@murfee.com]

Sent: Friday, February 26, 2021 8:46 AM

To: Chad Mitchell <Chad@excelconstruction.com>

Cc: Evan Parker <eparker@murfee.com>; Brad Clark <Brad@excelconstruction.com>; Kevin Wenske
<Kevin@excelconstruction.com>; Kennis, Jesse <Jesse.Kennis@inframark.com>; Michael Moyer
<MMover@taylormorrison.com>; Michael Slack <MSlack@taylormorrison.com>; Alek Falkenbury




<afalkenbury@murfee.com>
Subject: RE: Raw Sewage Spill

This message originated from outside of our organization

Chad,
Alright, thanks for the update. All we can do is work to get it cleaned up.
lesse,

Have you been in contact with WWTS about getting some pumper trucks out to work on removing the water from the
basin and excavation?

Thanks,

Andrea Wyatt, P.E.
Murfee Engineering Company
512-497-1451

From: Chad Mitchell [mailto:Chad@excelconstruction.com]

Sent: Friday, February 26, 2021 8:41 AM

To: Andrea Wyatt

Cc: Evan Parker; Brad Clark; Kevin Wenske; Kennis, lesse; Michael Moyer; Michael Slack; Alek Falkenbury
Subject: RE: Raw Sewage Spill

Andrea,
It appears that a line broken broke last night and flooded our chlorine contract basin excavation and SBR basin
again. Please see attached picture.

Thanks again.

Cliad Mitethell

Excel Construction Services, LLC
{512) 259-5005 Office

(512) 259-5665 Fax

(512) 945-3287 Mobile

From: Andrea Wyatt <awyatt@murfee.com>

Sent: Monday, February 22, 2021 11:24 AM

To: Chad Mitchell <Chad @excelconstruction.com>

Cc: Evan Parker <eparker@murfee.com>; Brad Clark <Brad@excelconstruction.com>; Kevin Wenske
<Kevin@excelconstruction.com>; Kennis, Jesse <Jesse.Kennis@inframark.com>; Michael Moyer
<MMovyer@taylormorrison.com>; Michael Slack <MSlack@taylormorrison.com>; Alek Falkenbury
<afalkenbury@murfee.com>

Subject: RE: Raw Sewage Spill

Chad,



Please see attached letter. It sounds like WWTS was able to pump at least one load already, but who knows if they’ll be
able to continue.

Regards,

Andrea Wyatt, P.E.
Murfee Engineering Company
512-497-1491

From: Chad Mitchell [mailto:Chad@excelconstruction.com]
Sent: Monday, February 22, 2021 10:01 AM

To: Andrea Wyatt

Cc: Evan Parker; Brad Clark; Kevin Wenske; Kennis, Jesse
Subject: RE: Raw Sewage Spill

Andrea,

Following up on our conversation, the raw sewage spill did get into the new SBR basin. We are guessing there is about
5’ of sewage in the basin. This basin will need to be cleaned also. Because both basins are requiring cleaning, Excel
could begin pumping the remaining raw sewage from the chlorine contact basin excavation to the new SBR basin. This
will allow Inframark some time to arrange Wastewater Transport to remove the sewage and get the raw sewage off the
ground.

If this is the direction, RRWWTP, MEC, and Inframark would like to move, please send me written direction authorizing
Excel to pump the raw sewage into the SBR basin. Inframark will still bear all costs to remove and clean the sewage
from the basin and excavation.

As of note, the Chlorine Contact Basin slab was scheduled to be poured on 2/23/21 and the grout flooring was to be
poured on 2/26/21.

Thanks again,

Chiad Witehell

Excel Construction Services, LLC
(512) 259-5005 Office

(512) 259-5665 Fax

(512) 945-3287 Mobile

From: Andrea Wyatt <awyatt@murfee.com>

Sent: Monday, February 22, 2021 7:04 AM

To: Chad Mitchell <Chad @excelconstruction.com>

Cc: Evan Parker <eparker@murfee.com>; Brad Clark <Brad@excelconstruction.com>; Kevin Wenske
<Kevin@excelconstruction.com>

Subject: RE: Raw Sewage Spill

Chad,
Thank you for the update on the extent of this spill. | will contact Inframark to determine their schedule.

Regards,



Andrea Wyatt, P.E.
Murfee Engineering Company
512-497-1491

From: Chad Mitchell [mailto:Chad@excelconstruction.com]
Sent: Monday, February 22, 2021 6:55 AM

To: Andrea Wyatt

Cc: Evan Parker; Brad Clark; Kevin Wenske

Subject: Raw Sewage Spill

Andrea,

To follow up on Jesse’s email from February 17, 2021, the winter storm affected the plant operation. Raw
sewage from the bar screen area overflowed into the new effluent structure and the chlorine contact
basin. The spill appears to fill the new effluent basin and chlorine contact basin. The attached photos were
taken on Saturday afternoon.

As of this morning, the raw sewage is still in the new effluent structure and the chlorine contact basin
excavation. The sewage spill will directly affecting our schedule and is causing a delay to the project. Excel is
assuming that the plant operator will remove the raw sewage, clean the basins and power wash the basins
and rebar. Before we can calculate the extent of the delay. Please get with Inframark and provide Excel with a
date when the raw sewage will be cleaned and removed from the site.

Thanks again,

Chad Weretell

Excel Construction Services, LLC
(512) 259-5005 Office

{512) 259-5665 Fax

(512) 945-3287 Mobile



Delay Duration March 1st

Chad Mitchell

From: Chad Mitchell

Sent: Monday, March 1, 2021 8:16 AM

To: Michael Moyer; Willeford, Zachary; clayton@perfectcutsinc.com

Cc: Kennis, Jesse; Andrea Wyatt; Evan Parker; Brad Clark; Kevin Wenske; Michael Slack; Alek
Falkenbury; Sibole, Robert; Roberts, Melissa

Subject: RE: Raw Sewage Spill

Attachments: IMG_1881.JPEG; IMG_1882.JPEG

Andrea,

It appears the basins and chlorine contact excavation flooded again over the weekend. We believe the cause of the
flooding is from the effluent lift station. Please see attached picture.

We have rescheduled the rebar inspection to Tuesday, March 2" and will still try to pour the chlorine contact basin slab
on March 3, 2021. | will let you know the effects of the schedule.

Thanks again.

Cliad Mitetell

Excel Construction Services, LLC
(512) 259-5005 Office

(512) 259-5665 Fax

(512) 945-3287 Mobile






Delay Duration March 2nd

From: Brad Clark <Brad@excelconstruction.com>

Sent: Tuesday, March 2, 2021 7:22 AM

To: Chad Mitchell <Chad @excelconstruction.com>; Michael Moyer <MMoyer@taylormarrison.com>; Willeford, Zachary
<Zachary.Willeford@inframark.com>; clayton@perfectcutsinc.com

Cc: Kennis, Jesse <Jesse.Kennis@inframark.com>; Andrea Wyatt <awyatt@murfee.com>; Evan Parker
<eparker@murfee.com>; Kevin Wenske <Kevin@excelconstruction.com>; Michael Slack
<MSlack@taylormorrison.com>; Alek Falkenbury <afalkenbury@murfee.com>; Sibole, Robert
<Robert.Sibole@inframark.com>; Roberts, Melissa <missy.roberts@inframark.com>

Subject: RE: Raw Sewage Spill

Good morning all,
We are flooded again here at Reunion Ranch!

Brad Clark

Excel Construction Services,LLC
(512) 259-5005 Office

(512) 259-5665 Fax

(512) 415-1462 Cell

‘l"“ .

L]




Delay Duration March 11th and March 12th

Chad Mitchell

From: Chad Mitchell

Sent: Thursday, March 11, 2021 8:03 AM

To: Brad Clark; Michael Moyer; Willeford, Zachary; clayton@perfectcutsinc.com

Cc: Kennis, Jesse; Andrea Wyatt; Evan Parker; Kevin Wenske; Michael Slack; Alek Falkenbury;
Sibole, Robert; Roberts, Melissa

Subject: Sewage Spill 3-11-21

All,

Currently, the effluent lift station is overflowing and spilling into our SBR structure and Chlorine Contact Basin
excavation. The plant operator has been called. Please make arrangements to clean the spillage up.

Thanks again






STy ‘
\mm. manfq |




Delay Duration March 13th- 18th

Chad Mitchell

From: Chad Mitchell

Sent: Thursday, March 18, 2021 12:39 PM

To: Brad Clark; '‘Michael Moyer'; ‘Willeford, Zachary"; 'clayton@perfectcutsinc.com'

Cc: ‘Kennis, Jesse'; '"Andrea Wyatt'; ‘Evan Parker’; Kevin Wenske; 'Michael Slack’; ‘Alek
Falkenbury'; 'Sibole, Robert'; 'Roberts, Melissa’; 'kristi.hester@inframark.com'

Subject: RE: Sewage Spill 3-14-21

Evan or Zach,

Jesse informed Brad on Monday that there was another effluent sewage spill on March 14t and a vacuum
truck would be here on either Tuesday or Wednesday to clean the remaining sewage from the March 11th
spill and newly spilled sewage from March 14t . As of this morning, the sewage remains in the new SBR unit.

We cannot schedule the grout topping work, interior coating work, or any other interior SBR work until the
spillage is cleaned up. Can you let us know when the sewage will be removed?

Thanks again,

Cload Mlitetell

Excel Construction Services, LLC
(512) 259-5005 Office

(512) 259-5665 Fax

(512) 945-3287 Mobile



Delay Duration March 30th to April 5th

Chad Mitcheli

—

From: Chad Mitchell

Sent: Wednesday, March 31, 2021 12:47 PM

To: Kennis, Jesse; Brad Clark; Michael Moyer; Willeford, Zachary;
clayton@perfectcutsinc.com

Cc: Andrea Wyatt; Evan Parker; Kevin Wenske; Michael Slack; Alek Falkenbury; Sibole,
Robert; Roberts, Melissa

Subject: RE: Sewage Spill 3-11-21

Attachments: IMG_1929.JPEG; IMG_1931.JPEG; IMG_1930.JPEG

All,

The effluent lift station spilled sewage into the new SBR structure and Chlorine Contact Basin/ filter pad area this
morning. Currently, we are pumping the sewage back into the existing SBR basin from the filter pad area. However,
we had to cancel the densities schedule for today until the sewage is removed from the filter pad area.

The plant operator was notified. Please make arrangements to clean the spillage up from the SBR.

Cload Metchell

Excel Construction Services, LLC
(512) 259-5005 Office

(512) 259-5665 Fax

(512) 945-3287 Mobile







Chad Mitchell

From: Chad Mitchell

Sent: Thursday, April 1, 2021 10:05 PM

To: Michael Moyer

Cc: Andrea Wyatt, P.E.; Evan Parker; Brad Clark
Subject: Re: Sewage Spill 3-11-21

Michael,

There are several reasons why the spills are happening. The mixers lost power, the bar screen clogged, effluent pumps
stopped working, VFDs went hay wire, the SBR did not decant peoperly, and the loss of power. Infrmark can give you a
more detailed explanation of each of these issues.

Yes, this has had major effects on the schedule this past month and a half. Currently, we are 30 plus days in delays.
Andrea asked us to track the delays. We are to the point we can submit the claim and the adjusted schedule for MEC
review.

Thanks again,
Chad
Get Outlook for iOS

From: Michael Moyer <MMoyer@taylormorrison.com>
Sent: Thursday, April 1, 2021 8:33:42 PM

To: Chad Mitchell <Chad@excelconstruction.com>
Subject: RE: Sewage Spill 3-11-21

Thanks Chad. What impact if any has/will this have on your schedule? Any ideas why this keeps happening?

Michael Moyer
Land Development Director

T +15125322111 MMoyer@taylormorrison.com

www.taylormorrison.com

TaylorMorrison.
A1 ;ﬁglrg"{son ﬂl‘m"ﬁ'?ﬁ* AiAA Fﬁglr?lrson. O nsrreo

This message may contain confidential information and i1s intended only for the named addressee If you are not the named addressee you
should not distribute or copy this e-mail If you have received this e-mail by mistake please delete it from your system

From: Chad Mitchell <Chad@excelconstruction.com>

Sent: Wednesday, March 31, 2021 12:47 PM

To: Kennis, Jesse <Jesse.Kennis@inframark.com>; Brad Clark <Brad@excelconstruction.com>; Michael Moyer
<MMoyer@taylormorrison.com>; Willeford, Zachary <Zachary.Willeford@inframark.com>; clayton@perfectcutsinc.com
Cc: Andrea Wyatt <awyatt@murfee.com>; Evan Parker <eparker@murfee.com>; Kevin Wenske
<Kevin@excelconstruction.com>; Michael Slack <MSlack@taylormorrison.com>; Alek Falkenbury

1



Delay Duration April 5th to April 8th

Chad Mitchell

From: Chad Mitchell

Sent: Monday, April 5, 2021 9:50 AM

To: Kennis, Jesse; Brad Clark; Michael Moyer; Willeford, Zachary

Cc: Andrea Wyatt; Evan Parker; Kevin Wenske; Michael Slack; Alek Falkenbury; Sibole,
Robert; Roberts, Melissa; kristi.hester@inframark.com

Subject: Effluent Spill 4-5-21

Attachments: IMG_1438,jpg; IMG_1439.jpg; IMG_1440.MOV; IMG_1443 jpg; IMG_1445.jpg

All,

The effluent ground storage tank spilled treated sewage into the new electrical duct bank morning. Currently, we are
pumping the treated sewage back into the existing SBR basin. However, we have canceled the densities schedule for
today and rescheduled the duct bank pour until the area is cleaned up.

Also, the new SBR still has sewage in the basin from the 3/31/21 spill. Please make arrangements to clean the spillage
up from the SBR.

Please see attached photos.
Thanks again,

Excel Construction Services, LLC
(512) 259-5005 Office

(512) 259-5665 Fax
(512) 945-3287 Mobile



Chad Mitchell

From: Gabe Cantu <GCantu@moralescompany.com>

Sent: Friday, April 9, 2021 3:57 PM

To: Chad Mitchell

Cc: Marcus Gonzalez; Jaime Ramirez; Brad Clark

Subject: Reunion Ranch - Underground Ductbank

Attachments: 11 - Ductbank Around Effluent Tank - 04.09.21.jpg; 10 - Ductbank Around Effluent Tank
- 04.09.21.jpg

Chad,

Please see the attached pictures of the progress TMC has made with the underground going around the existing effluent
tank. Please be advised, that if the existing effluent storage tank overflows again and causes our ditch to be flooded then
we will once again have a delay in our schedule. | know you are aware of this but | wanted to inform you how much
progress TMC has made since cleaning out the last time the effluent tank flooded our ductbank. Please feel free to
contact me if you have any questions or concerns regarding the contents of this email, thanks.

Respectfully,

Gabe Cantu

T. Morales Company (TECL 17189)
211 Elmhurst Drive, Suite C

Kyle, TX 78640

Office — (512) 504-3951

Mobile — (512) 573-0527
gecantu@moralescompany.com

Important/Confidential: This communication and any files or documents attached to it are intended only for the use of
the person or entity to which it is addressed. This communication contains information that may be privileged,
confidential and exempt from disclosure under applicable law. If you are not the intended recipient of this
communication, you are hereby notified that the copying, distribution or other use of this communication is strictly
prohibited. If you have received this communication by mistake, please notify the sender immediately by electronic mail
and destroy all forms of this communication {electronic or paper). Thank you.









Delay Duration April 12th to April 13th

Chad Mitchell

From: Chad Mitchell

Sent: Monday, April 12, 2021 10:10 AM

To: Kennis, Jesse; Brad Clark; Michael Moyer; Willeford, Zachary

Cc: Andrea Wyatt; Evan Parker; Michael Slack; Alek Falkenbury; Sibole, Robert; Roberts,
Melissa; kristi.hester@inframark.com

Subject: RE: Effluent Spill 4-11-21

All,

The effluent lift station spilled sewage into the new Filter Slab Excavation, Chlorine Contact Excavation, and SBR
Excavation. The sewage was pumped out sometime over the weekend. However, the sewage spill causes Excel to fail
our densities this morning. We will reschedule the densities once the area is dry. Also, due to the continual spillages,
we have to reschedule the filter equipment and SBR equipment delivery until the end of the month.

Thanks again,















Delay Duration April 16th to April 21st

Chad Mitchell

From: Chad Mitchell

Sent: Friday, April 16, 2021 8:52 AM

To: Kennis, Jesse; Brad Clark; Michael Moyer; Willeford, Zachary

Cc: Andrea Wyatt; Evan Parker; Michael Slack; Alek Falkenbury; Sibole, Robert; Roberts,
Melissa; kristi.hester@inframark.com

Subject: Effluent Spill 4-16-21

Attachments: 4-16-21 flood .3jpg.jpg; 4-16-21 flood 2.jpg; 4-16-21 flood 1.jpg

All,

The effluent lift station spilled sewage into the new Filter Slab Excavation, Chlorine Contact Excavation, and SBR
Excavation. It is our understanding that Inframark has arranged to have the sewage spill cleaned up. See attached
photos.

Cload Wetehiell

Excel Construction Services, LLC
(512) 259-5005 Office

(512) 259-5665 Fax

(512) 945-3287 Mobile







Chad Mitchell

From: Gabe Cantu <GCantu@moralescompany.com>
Sent: Monday, April 19, 2021 1:00 PM

To: Chad Mitchell

Cc: Brad Clark; Marcus Gonzalez; Jaime Ramirez
Subject: Reunion Ranch - Raw Sewage Flooding Ductbanks
Chad,

As you are aware TMC'’s Onsite Superintendent Marcus Gonzalez informed me today that there was another flood that
occurred at the Reunion Ranch WWTP Site, which caused raw sewage to run and flood areas that were excavated for
our electrical ductbanks. This is now the second incident of hazardous flooding that the owner has been more than
aware of and is now starting to effect TMC’s work schedule. Please be advised, TMC will not force our field staff to work
in areas that have been exposed to hazardous waste until these locations can be sanitized and cleaned in a manner
deemed fitting to work in again. TMC estimates that it will to take at least three full work days to have time to complete
the cleaning process, which will create an increase in price of additional time and material for this procedure. In addition
due to this flood TMC is now forced to keep rental equipment onsite longer than originally anticipated. TMC expects the
owner to cover these additional cost since it is their equipment/plant that has failed countless times to provide us with
adequate working conditions hindering TMC to perform our scope of work in a timely manner.

Respectfully,

Gabe Cantu

T. Morales Company (TECL 17189)
211 Elmhurst Drive, Suite C

Kyle, TX 78640

Office — (512) 504-3951

Mobile — (512) 573-0527
geantu@moralescompany.com

Important/Confidential: This communication and any files or documents attached to it are intended only for the use of
the person or entity to which it is addressed. This communication contains information that may be privileged,
confidential and exempt from disclosure under applicable law. If you are not the intended recipient of this
communication, you are hereby notified that the copying, distribution or other use of this communication is strictly
prohibited. If you have received this communication by mistake, please notify the sender immediately by electronic mail
and destroy all forms of this communication (electronic or paper). Thank you.



Delay Duration May 3rd

Chad Mitchell

From: Chad Mitchell

Sent: Tuesday, May 4, 2021 3:24 PM
To: Chad Mitchell

Subject: Sewage floo

Evan,

This spill happen to day. Any word when the plant is going to install the new SCADA system?

Get Qutlook for iOS




MURFEE ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC.

Texas Registered Firm No. F-353

1101 Capital of Texas Hwy., South, Bldg, D
Austin, Texas 78746

(512) 327-9204

M EM O R A ND U M

DATE:  June 10%, 2021

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS — REUNION RANCH WCID
FROM: George Murfee, P.E.

RE: Engineer’s Report — June 2021

CC: Mike Moyer — Taylor Morrison
Bill Flickinger — Willatt & Flickinger

MEC File No.: 12002.110

Wastewater Flows and Projections

Attached is an updated figure tracking wastewater flows to the existing WWTP vs. projections and
permit milestones.

WWTP Expansion

Work has been limited due to inclement weather resulting in the contractor needing to stop work to
constantly pump rain water out of trenches and basins. The contractor was able to install the new
blowers and the lift station wet well. Additionally, the exterior coating on the lift station is finished and
the SBR basin bridge is currently being installed. When the rain becomes less frequent, the new basins
are to be grouted and the lift station pit is to be backfilled.

MEC has continued to monitor basin levels, via weekly SCADA data, to assess daily peak times to prevent
overflows. The high level alarms are working as they should and have read out alarms twice within the
past month and called WWTS to site for an unscheduled haul. There have also been some solids hauled,
which is to be expected, since there is no longer an option to waste into a sludge box. No
spills/overflows have been reported in over a month.

210 Conversion

MEC is scheduled to finish collecting data with the Perfect Cuts crew on June 17 and will finish running
calculations to size an appropriate effluent irrigation pump. These calculations will help provide some
data needed for the LCRA grant application due in September.

Page 1of 1



AN1 T = 3WOoH 4S T) 53N

(3n1/pd3 801

YIUOA

re-nr €¢-1eN TZ-10 Qgz-unt 6T-9°4 £T-dds gT-Aen +1-99d £1-8ny
0 0
05 - __L
\zxcﬁ
\/\L;(\ T0°0
00T - (jen1oe) mo|4 a8esany :Eo_\,_-w\\
f g
0'9 = 3desany 0z0C )
ot 1\}\ £'8 = 99eIaAY 6T0Z [
/ 8'¢ = adesany 8T0C
\.\ €'g = 98esany 2102 o
=\~ o
1'1 = 98eJany 910¢ i
00T A a
§'¢ = 98eJany ST0C =
T'v = 98_IdAY $10Z o~
1 €00 T
\__../L. m
057 A =
/) 2
/ [0
/ =}
=Rl SUOI}I31100 WIISAS JD]SIAN -
/
00¢ A __\ 00
|
0ss 4 -7 JH ﬂ\ -7 Ajoede) panyiwiad JO %06
\ ,_,
— Y + — — o
/\ /‘/\ Aypeder Juawieal Sunsixg S
007 A
oSt 4
—— 300

Su01393[04d MO|{ 191eMIISEAN
alDM Yyouey uolunay

9t/8L SEXaL ‘unsny

a °8p|g “s “AmH sexa jo |ende) T0TT
€G€-4 "ON W({ paJ31si3ay sexa]

ou) ‘Auedwo) Suaauiduz sspnpy



yauow

€C-1eN TZ-P0 oz-unf 6T-994 LT-d3s ar-Aey v1-9°Q €1-3ny
0
0z
ov
09
(]
3,
-
C
wn
[:1)
®
08
1]
©
M/ zl> >>> 3
> J N > _ i - >> >.>..|. i 4 & a
-
o

5453/pd3 €6 - aBesany ¥ h Y \| CJ N 00t
N \ W 5\ \J
< ]

v << uu_mm\ua..mnmoﬁ - A3(Q PIS T + 28e12Ay
ozt
1453/pd3 0€T - siseg Au|iqisead puog 2453/pd8 TET - wnwixey
ovt
2453/pd8 0sT - siseq uBisag Suijiwiad
091
sishleuy agesn HuN dLMM
Juey uoiuna ’
aimmu Y uol Y 9p£8L SEX3L ‘UNSNY

Q'3pig “'s “AmH sexaL jo ende) TOTT
€G€-4 "ON w4 paJaisi8ay sexa]
"au| ‘Auedwo) Suliaauidul sauny



MURFEE ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC.

Texas Registered Firm No. F-353
1101 Capital of Texas Hwy., South
Building D, Suite 110

Austin, Texas 78746

(512) 327-9204

MEMORANDUM

DATE: June 1, 2021

TO: Reunion Ranch WCID Board of Directors
FROM: Andrea Wyatt, P.E.

RE: Pond Inspection and Recommendations

MEC Project No.:12002-116

The purpose of this memo is to inform the Board of the observations made during the site visit
to the pond located off of Mary Elise Way on May 14, 2021. The original intent of the site visit
was to determine if pedestrian access to the pond could be made safer but additional concerns were
brought up during the visit. All of these items are outlined in this memo, along with recommendations
and proposals where appropriate.

Maintenance Access Road and Pedestrian Access

The maintenance access road is often used by residents as a pedestrian access to the pathway that runs
between Mary Elise Way and the pond. However, the maintenance road is constructed of rip rap with a
typical largest diameter between three and five inches and does not provide a safe walking path. As the
rip rap provides a stable access way to the pond, any improvement must maintain that access. MEC
recommends that the center portion of the access road can be converted to a more stable path by
removing the larger rock and putting down small diameter gravel. If the District chooses to do this, the
gravel pathway must be considered an item that would require maintenance as the smaller gravel is
likely to be washed downgrade by rain and will need replaced regularly. This is a generally low priority
item as the issue does not impact operation of the stormwater system.

Pagelof7



Figure 1: Pond Access Point on Mary Elise Way

In addition to the modifications to the road in order to make pedestrian access safer, an inquiry was
made regarding the possibility of modifying the gate in order to make it possible to get through the
security gate without walking around the gate, through the large rock. No standard gate could be found
with a configuration that allows for pedestrian passage through the center of a double road access gate
like the one currently installed. MEC doesn’t recommend further pursuit of this inquiry unless the Board
continues to receive requests from the residents.

Pathway around Pond

The residents raised the request to install a walking pathway around the circumference of the pond. The
pond was designed with a minimum 6-foot wide berm which could serve as the location for the
installation of a path. MEC was not able to confirm that the berm installed actually has this designed flat
top. Additionally, the Board should be aware that any path construction would require a level of
engineering to ensure long-term stability and will require long-term maintenance. This is a generally low
priority item as the issue does not impact operation of the stormwater system.

Water Flowing over Concrete Pathway

The existing concrete walkway is in the typical path for the water flowing out of the pond. This causes
particular problems after a large rainfall event and the water remains on the pathway for extended
periods of time causing a walking hazard. The concrete was installed in response to the washing away of

Page 2 of 7



the original gravel path. MEC has reviewed the approved construction documents for information on the
pathways intended design, however it appears as though the pathway was added without a basis of
design making analysis difficult. MEC recommends that the construction of the pathway be reviewed by
an individual familiar with sidewalk design. This is a generally low priority item as the issue does not
impact operation of the stormwater system.

Erosion throughout Green Space and Impact on Pathway

There is significant erosion occurring throughout the green-space that stretches between the pond
outlet weir and lacksdaw Road. The erosion is caused by pond effluent flowing overland, crossing both
over and under the concrete pathway several times. It appears as though no permanent ditch was
installed to carry the pond effluent away from the pond or to direct the effluent away from the
pathway. This is likely because the pond effluent is considered treated water and is simply being
discharged to the ground. Additional investigation will be necessary to determine a pathway that the
pond effluent can follow and the steps necessary to modify the grade in order to help avoid water
flowing over the pathway. MEC can provide an official proposal for this work, but a preliminary estimate
indicates that the effort to investigate the erosion and make a recommendation will cost approximately
$6,500. This is a generally low priority item as the issue does not impact operation of the stormwater
system.

Figure 2: Example Erosion Caused by Overland Flow of Pond Effluent

Page 3 of 7



Use of the Pond for Recreation

The question of using the pond for various recreational activity came up during the site visit, specifically
swimming, fishing, and entrance by pets. Generally speaking residents should not enter the pond as the
stormwater run-off contains contaminants such as oils, heavy metals, pesticides, fertilizers, and any
other materials that end up on the ground in the development. Pets should not be permitted to swim in
the pond for the same reason. The pond maintenance contractor indicated that fishing can be allowed,
however the fish should never be consumed. If the District or Board is concerned about liability, it may
be useful to install signage indicating that the pond is not safe for swimming, etc. If the Board elects to
communicate the potential use of the pond, the communication should go out community wide
relatively soon in order allow for appropriate use during the upcoming summer season.

Pond Aeration

The pond maintenance contractor brought up the possibility of installing underwater aeration in order
to enhance the function of the pond. By adding oxygen to the water, the biology at the bottom of the
pond could function more efficiently and extend the duration between pond solids removal events,
potentials by five to ten years. Aquatic Features, Inc., stated that a system typically costs approximately
$4,800 installed, assuming 110V power is available within 50 feet of the pond’s edge. An information
sheet about the proposed system is attached to this memo. MEC recommends that the Board consider
adding an aeration system to the pond if electrical service can be easily brought to the pond’s edge.

Pond Solids Removal

The pond is designed to retain solids and to treat contaminants using the natural pond biology. This
process leads to a slow build-up of solids on the pond floor. Eventually this build-up needs to be
removed in order to maintain an appropriate pond volume for treating the storm water. The interval
between solids removal varies depending on the quality and quantity of the stormwater. The pond
maintenance contractor, Aquatic Features, Inc., can complete a survey of the pond sludge depth to
determine is removal is required and the sludge dredging contractor can use their survey to provide a
better quote for their services. Aquatic Features, Inc., has indicated that they charge $650 to complete
the survey and that the typical cost for sludge removal is between $75,000 and $125,000 per acre.
Measuring the surface area of the pond on Google Earth yields an approximate surface area of 0.75
acres. MEC recommends that the sludge layer be surveyed in order to determine the rate of solids
accrual and forecast when sludge removal may become necessary.

Weir Undermining

While on site, MEC observed that there has been some undermining of the weir at the outlet of the
pond. It is difficult to determine the extent of the material removed, photos are attached that show how
the material is missing from around and below the concrete weir structure. A structural engineer may
need to inspect the weir to determine if the structure is currently stable and what the Board can expect
in terms of ongoing erosion. Based on a review of the photos taken during the site visit, a structural
engineer indicated that the typical; remedy is to core an appropriately sized hole through the weir from
the top and inject flowable fill to fill any gaps between the concrete and the soil. MEC would make
additional erosion control recommendations to protect the downstream face of the weir from further
erosion.

Page 4 of 7



Figure 3: Example of Erosion at Outlet Weir

Issues from inframark
Inframark noted several issues that impact the operator’s ability to maintain this wet pond, as well as
the other water quality ponds in the development.

Rip Rap at Pond Influent Structure

Inframark pointed out that large diameter rip rap had been placed on top of the concrete apron that
protects in the inlet from erosion. The rip rap collects sediment and provides a fertile growing substrate
for various plants causing water to collect in the concrete structure during dry periods. This water is
somewhat isolated from the pond and is still, increasing the risk of mosquito population growth.
Additionally it is very difficult for the operator to maintain the plant growth. Both Inframark and Aquatic
Features, Inc., stated that the installation was nonstandard in their experiences. After reviewing the

Page 5 of 7



record drawings for the pond, MEC determined that the rip rap was not part of the original design and
can be removed from the concrete apron.

Figure 4: Rip Rap, Sediment, and Yegetation at Pond Inlet

Access to Pond Off of Jacksdaw

The pond off of Jacksdaw has an access road for maintenance purposed, however the road does not
access the pond in a manner conducive to maintaining the inlet structure and the operator is required to
drive heavy equipment across the wet portion of the pond when it is needed to remove built-up
sediment. As easements are being currently being defined, the District should consider modifying the
current easement configuration in order to allow for access to the pond closer to the inlet structure.

Page 6 of 7



Summary of Issues

The following table provides a summary of the issues, recommendations, and timeline for the items

discussed above.

Maintenance Access Road and
Pedestrian Access

Pathway around Pond

Erosion throughout Green

Space and Impact on Pathway

Use of the Pond for Recreation

Pond Aeration

Pond Solids Removal

Weir Undermining

Rip Rap at Pond Influent
Structure

Access to Pond off of Jacksdaw

Remove large rocks from center
36 to 48 inches of the access
road and install small gravel to
construct a stable walkway
Solicit proposals for
construction of a pathway on
berm

Investigate the grade and
determine if the pond outfall
was installed properly,
potentially modify the grade

Non-contact recreation is
permissible, signage may be
warranted, communication can
be sent to residents

Request official proposal if
electricity is readily available,
coordinate with Inframark

Solids will need to be removed
and the quantity of solids in the
pond should be surveyed to
help determine when removal
will become necessary, an
estimate for cost of removal can
be obtained after the survey is
completed

The weir should be evaluated by
a structural engineer

Remove rip rap, sediment, and
vegetation on the concrete
apron

Inframark should make a
recommendation for the
appropriate location for the
permanent easement

Not a priority item beyond the
Board’s desire to address
resident concerns

Not a priority item

Not a priority item in terms of
stormwater system operation,
investigation can be completed
when the Board approves the
work

Send communication to
residents ahead of the summer
season

Request proposal immediately,
add installation of pond
aeration system to July Board
meeting if the budget allows
Survey the pond sludge depth
this summer, add sludge
removal to the CIP list

Evaluation should be completed
as soon as possible

Complete when Inframark
provides a proposal that can be
approved by the Board.

Need recommendation as soon
as possible in order to integrate
easement in the current efforts

Page 7 of 7



gverrex 1/2 Hp Aeration Systems

AQUATIC SOLUTIONS FOR LARGE PONDS

A Rentokll Company

Vertex diffused aeration systems are super-efficient, affordable and safe. The rising force of millions of bubbles
transports bottom water to the surface, allowing oxygen to be absorbed and circulating the entire water column.

BENEFITS TO THE LAKE

+ High pumping rate easily penetrates stratification layers
* Promotes beneficial bacteria growth

* Prevents low oxygen fish kills

* Reduces nutrient levels and associated algae growth

* Oxidizes/reduces bottom muck

+ Expands oxygenated habitat for improved fisheries

* Reduces aquatic midge and mosquito insect hatches

+ Eliminates foul odors from undesirable dissolved gases

1/2 HP SYSTEMS

NAME ‘ AIRSTATIONS
 AR2 X2 | 2
 AR3 XL2 g |
Options: Sound kits, Shallow Water AirStations and VBS AR 2 XL4 ; ) I
remote valve boxes |

SUPER-DUTY BROOKWOOD™ COMPRESSOR MEDIUM QUIETAIR™ CABINET

3-year Vertex warranty — Limited lifetime warranty against rust
(excluding weargble parts: gir filters and : + Powder coated aluminum for a durable attractive finish
compressor maintenance Kits) a us . . _ .
Ao * Equipped with a stamped ventilation grill
e UL, 115v or 230v, 2 Cycle, 4.3 CFM + High capacity 140 CFM fan

¢ Built for continuous 24/7 operation * Class "A" GFCI Protection on compressor and fan circuits

* Upgraded rotors, stators, valve plates, bearings and

) * Quick disconnect switch included
capacitors

+ Easy access design with cam lock

™

* Vertex SafeStart™ Technology for auto restart under

. i ¢ Easy plug-in connection to waterside electrical service
maximum rated pressure without motor damage

* Heavy duty, light weight mounting pad included

* Thermal overload protection ) ] )
¢ Optional muffler box and additional insulation

* Qil-free, and require no lubrication

¢ 2-3 year extended duty cycle between scheduled ©Vertex Aquatic Solutions. We reserve the right to improve/change
maintenance our designs/specifications without notice or obligation.

Getting the right system requires knowing the acreage, depth, shape and slope and location of power source.
Contact Vertex or your local Vertex Dealer for free design recommendations.

——

844.432.4303 + vertexaquaticsolutions.com




verrex

TAUATIC SOLUTTONS Tubing and AirStations

A Rentokil Company

BOTTOMLINE™ SUPPLY TUBING
15-year Vertex warranty
¢ Available in 50, 100', 250" and 500' spools
¢ Self-weighted for easy installation
+ Flexible PVC composite direct burial and submersible tubing
¢ Use with standard PVC solvent weld cement and insert fittings
¢ High wall thickness for durability and protection from punctures
* Remains flexible in cold temperatures.
¢ Over-sized I.D. for high flow

HIGH WALL THICKNESS~,

BottomLine™ [@
H

T
LETTERING EVERY 12"

More than 60,000 diffuser disks installed without a single reported clogged or blown-out membrane.
Each produces up to 3000 fine micron bubbles - the majority 500 to 1000 microns.

AIRSTATION DISKS SELF-SINKING AIRSTATION: XL1, XL2, XL2SW
5-year "No Questions" warranty 5-year "No Questions" warranty

* 9" diameter, flexible membrane diffuser discs + Made of powder-coated stainless steel

¢ Self-cleaning, low maintenance * Designed to prevent settling into soft bottom sediments.

¢ EPDM compound with 100% rebound memory * Adjustable diffuser risers accommodate any site requirements

* Flexible, long-wearing and clog resistant even in the dirtiest

waterbodies STANDARD AIRSTATION: XL4, XL5

+ “Delta” surface pattern increases active surface area 5-year "No Questions" warranty

¢ Highly efficient even during low and moderate air flows + Vacuum-formed HDPE base, spot-welded for unit integrity

¢ Larger, stronger diffuser ring improves membrane retention ¢ Hollow chamber design for the addition of gravel ballast

+ StableTrak™ technology increases lift velocity ¢ Lipped design prevents settling into soft bottom sediments.

844.432.4303 ¢+ vertexaquaticsolutions.com




()INFRAMARK

WATER & INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES

Reunion Ranch WCID
General Manager Reports for the month of

May 2021
Board Meeting: June 15th, 2021

Reviewed By: Kristi Hester
Date: 6/9/2021



United States

@ l N F R A M A R K 14050 Summit Drive, #103 Austin, TX 78728

T: +1 512 246 0498
www.inframark.com

Memorandum for: Board of Director's Reunion Ranch WCID

From: Kristi Hester

Date: 6.9.2021

Subject: General Manager's Executive Summary Report

Below is a summary of activities since the last board meeting:

1) Water System

a)
b)
c)
d)

506 active connections. 8.03 MG purchased for the month. 93.5% water accounted for.
Chlorine and bacteriological samples all in compliance.

11 delinquent letters mailed out zero disconnects - Over 60 days less than $250.00
Repaired leak on master meter sample port

2) WWTPI/Collection System

a)
b)

c)
d)
e)

f)
g)

Total flows 1.37 MG, average 44,000 GPD, 88% capacity - exceeded BOD and TSS permit levels

Scheduled hauls in the AM and PM have been working well to contain our levels therefore no
overflows have occurred due to high levels

We have made progress on the treatment process and have reduced the TSS and BOD levels -
partly due to inability to manage solids

Non-Potable Signs have been installed at drip fields

Operations is cleaning the bar screens 2x per day to prevent air scrubber from malfunction
Repaired leak in field 21

Pulled effluent pump #1 clogged

3) Drainage/Ponds

a)
b)

Meeting onsite with committee and residents went very well - Andrea will have the full report and
Cleaned inlets at pond 2-3 and 3-1

4) Construction

a) Conducted 36 Builder Inspections
5) Other
a) Application for FEMA grant has been processed

Current Items Requiring Board Approval

Amount

WO# Amount Description




({1 025'08 8LL's. S9|qeAI0Y [Bljo |
186°C Zrl'l (6€8'}) so|qeAlsoay paby [ejo L
1Zv'e 8.E'6.L 156'9/ pajiid [e10L
(o1E’s) £e'TLY'VL ¥1'28L°6) Pa]lig SJUN0JdY Joj as() J3jeM DAy
- - pawie|oay
(000°814) = 000’814 “Bupjoes |
00S 0 5 JueipAH
v £v9'C.L LLL'66l VOH - [eloJawwo)
(558°1) £v8'clL 86911 [BRUSPISaY
uondwnsuo) abeJaAy
(000°252°L) 000°€2€'L 000°080°6 pawnsuoy) suojjes [ejo
- - pawieosy
{000°812) - 000°81LL Buyoe. |
= = - JuelpAH
(000'S.4) 000'210'1 000'26.°L VOH - [eldjswwo)
(000'%92) 000'90¢€'9 000°0.5°9 [euapisay
uondwnsuo?)
Ly 90S 6SY paj|ig S1unoJdy JO Jaquunn [ejol
- - pawiepay
= 3 L Bupyoes|
(2) 0 Z JueJpAH
vl 6 VOH - |[elnsawwo)
¥ L6¥ Ly [BUSpISDY
1Z-Aepy 0z-Ae
2aueliep SUOI}I3UUOH uondussaq

Krewwnsg buiig

MUYV HANIG)



DNUDADY JO1BMIISEAN 1 BNUIABY JIIBM B

1Z/S 1zZfy Zj€ 1z{z TZjt ozfzt ozftt oz/ot oz/6o 0z/go 0z/L0 oz/g0 oz/So
00 0%

00 000°0T%
00'000'0Z3
00 000'0Es
00 000'0%s
00'000'05s

00 000'09%

00 000°0L%

00 000'08%

00'000'068%

00°000'00T$

Kiobajeg Aq anuanay KioysiH yuow Buing zi




VIN uswWAed UON J0} S108UU09SI(]
V/IN Buny sbe) Jusnbuleq
Ll pajiey Japa Juanbuljaq
0008 SUOI}0||07D) UCHEBIapISUOY) pleog
0008 JO 3JUM 0] uoneiapisuc) pieog
00°0SL $ = $|216CL $ ] 96°Gv6'C $ | 1202508 $ L2/S
6v'829'L $ | 96°Svv $ | 88'8LG $ | LE260€ $ (6161848 $ Leir
9GS ELLL $lE6YLS $]09v20°L $ |826.2¢E $ ] 0.°685°99 $ L2t
00°0G1 $ [ 95°€96 S| ¥S0LL S | ¥9189'C $ | 22898'LL ) LZie
00°0S1 p E $ | ¥6°0EC | $]08928°¢ } | £2°8€8'C9 $ Lc/L
00°0S1 $|SCY S| 62Se9'L S [ 8249101 $ ] 0L v8Y'8s $ (144"
00051 E c $ | 208 $ | sECLS'E $ | LEBEY T8 $ 0c/LL
00051 A4 $|62¢rL $ | 066L0F $ | 9¥'ELOC6 $ 02/0L
S9EYE g - | 65 LY $|929l6€ $ | GG'GLL'GE Ey 02/6
£¢09¢ [A A% $10L99¢€ $ | LLEEL'S $ | 99°795°ECl $ 0¢c/8
00°0SL $ | s8¥'62L $ | 66206 $ | BL'EED'9 $ | ¥6'EY'¥OL % 0Z/L
00°0S1 $ . $ | GE°0CE $ | 1816C'L $ | §9°G0¥ 8L 02/9
00°0SL $ = $ | 06°00F $ | 86°'G2C0'E $]19711°6L 02/S
+0Z1 [ejol Aeq 06 lejol Aeq 09 lejol Ae( 0¢ |ej0L 9|qBAI3DSY |Bjo | ajeq
n | B
—| —
— e — 5|

joday sSuon2a|jos puk 9|qeAIa2ay SUN0IIY YIUOW Z 1|




oy

N

050

00T

oS'T

00'¢e

0S¢

00'€

€20 Ge'C 122 LZ-AeN
18°0 00'¢C 8¥'c | Z-1ay
000 000 ZeC LZ-1e
110 161 29'C 1Z-go4
100 1971 9/°¢C jg-uer
100 el 102 02-28Q
¥1°0 16T Zve 0Z-AON
GL'0 6L°1L 0£'C 0Z-10
¥1°0 99’1 0L'e 0z-das
06°0 65°L 0£C 0zZ-bny
G0 9/') 90'C oz-Inf
/10 17N vy’ oc-unp
Z8'0 68l + |9ce oc-Aen
EHN puLIo|yd ouoly|  bAY 210 aleq

€HN - auuoyd ouoN-bay T 1D

0G° @A0Qy ag 1SN\ sjuswalinbay sjels

BAY [enuuy Jualing

Buiiojiuoy Ajjeny Jajep

Ajijenp pue uononpold J13jep

w

WYY YANI )



5507/ulED » pios & pasewpIng §
= S > & )
I @u;uo & & %u..% & N s &2 %.,oo & &£ & & A
.f.ﬂ(..v :...«.v .a..m’ ....vaﬁr 74:.. ..d.no 1»%( Jao.. B .n.b \«..A.f sr,_O f@@ //40 o.w« Q&O duﬂﬂ .vnn) z.wo.. /ﬁn; /\.vnv ...nv: ‘,...sz &vrz 4@@
L & Qg & & & ¢ & ¢ & ¢ & & &

000'2

000F%

0009

000’8

000°0T

000°TT

Q00°vT

ong’'9T

00081

poday Ajljiqeiunoosdy J9)eM




%SG €6 %Sy 9- (819) 0 Z\8'. 0€0'8 920G 12/02/S |12 AN
%Z) 06 %886~ (c06) g 122'8 vEL'6 906 L2/6L/y Lz 1uay
%6790l %69 ove Gl 026'¢ G69'C ¥0S L2/6L/IE  |LC Udten
%0126 %06°L- (PPP) 0 G/L'S 619'G 20s 12/02/c |lg Aenigad
%S¢ /6 %SG.'C- (€L1) L 866'C SLL'y 861 L2/SL/L |1z Avenuer
%2S’ 66 %8%'0- (02) 0 8G9'G 989'S o061 02/2L/ZL |0Z Jequiede(
%€ 001 %¥E0 e ) 6216 901’6 68Y 0c/8L/LL |0Z 48qWaAON
%6986 %LE L (G¥1) L 9S6'0L  [80L°LL G8Y 0¢/6L/01 |0Z 4990100
%S0°201 %S0'C ¥5¢ 8 ¥¥9'cL  |86€'CL 18Y 02/8L/6 |0¢ Joqwaldss
%ZL 101 %L Iz 8 ¥S5/'GL  [88G'GL viv 0¢/8L/8 |0z isnbny
%8%°001 %80 29 I 9G6'cl  |G68°C! Q9% oz/ZLi. oz Ainp
%66 66 %01 °0- @ v 1GZ'0L |092'0l €9y 0¢//L/9 |0g8unr
%Y. L6 %92'C- ((4%4) ] 1G1'6 11€'6 6SY 02/8LIS |0¢ Ae
%P 16 %99°C- (9¥1L) L 92¢'S 6.¥'S 1% 0Z/.L/y |02 luay
%1 1°G6 %68 ¥~ (G61) 8 €6.'¢C 966'€ (727 0z/8L/€  |0¢C ud1en
%SG.2°001 %G.0 62 6 0¥8'c 028'c Zey 0Z//\/Z |0Z Aeniga4
%ET 16 %L1°C- (801) oL Z6l'¢ 016'¢ ocy 0z/9L/L  |0g Adenuer
%29'96 %8€E €~ (951) g Lov Y 229y vy 61/21/21 |61 JBqwadeq
%G/ 86 %GZ |- (86) €l 20l'. €18, GLy 6L/SL/LL |6l JOGWSAON
%86°¢01 %86°C o9ve L 6Ll |S09'LL 10V 61/9L/0L |61 1990100
%9% 16 %¥SC- (19¢) 0 968'cl [Zle'vl 66€ 6L//L/6 |6l JOaquaeides
%0686 %01 |- (o¥L) Gl 56’21 |60L°CL 68€ 6L/9L/8 |61 Isnbny
%c. L0l %cl’L 8G1 6 0SE'6 L0Z'6 18€ 6L/LL/L |6l AINF
%10°26 %66°C- (ove) €l 95/°, 600’8 L€ 6L//L/9 |61 8unr
%6076 %16°G- (2€¢€) Gl 1GE'S €0.'S €9¢ 6L/LLIS |6l AN

lo4 ss019% (=) ssoq J19Ui0/ asn SIS SuondduUU0)  Jje( peay YjJuon

pajunoosoy s’len bBuwysni4 pajg laiseN JO JaquinN




Kel\l JO YIUOW 2Y] 10} SMO[ JOIEMI)SEM

RAIIEND PUE UGRANPOId JIEMBISEM

MIVAVEINID =




SOA SHuN PIS 052 SYUN PIS 0'6 (xe) Hd

S9A SHUN PIS ¥8°9 SHuN PIS 0°9 (UIN) Hd

SOA bW L'y /6w o'} (UIW) IenpISaY BULOIYD

ON /6w 22g WBw oz (BAv) SSL

ON bw ¢y /Bw oz (6av) gog

%0°08 SBA QoW 000 A9 0500 (‘BAY) dLMM MO|4

Iudy jo uo ayy 104

S9A siun pIs G¥'2 sWun IS 0'6 (xeW) Hd

SOA SJun PIS G2 sHun PIS 0'9 (W) Hd

SaA bw gL /6w oL (uW) [enpisay sulolyd

ON 7/6w '8z /6w 0z (BAy) sS1

ON /6w 8'sg /6w 0Z (6av) aog

%088 SOA don vv0'0 d5N 0500 ('BAY) dLMM MO[

LN3IO¥N3d LNVITdNOD AvVNLOY LINN3d

Aew J0 yuol ayy Jog




%L c6 000°9¢ 000°20L°EL SIVIOL
%0/ 101 000°GE 000'€20°1 12€ 6L-uer
%8S [&] 000'62 000'208 %€ 61-094
%09 G8 000'0€ 000'€E6 £6€ 61-1eIN
%99 26 000°€E 000°210°L 8G¢€ 61-10y
%l z0lL 000°/€ 000'6EL°1L £9¢ 6l-AeN
%0/ ¥6 000'GE 000'8€0°L 1.€ gL-unr
%8/ 20l 000'6€ 000'+0Z'L 18¢ 6L-Inr
%P8 801 000°Zy 000'90€’L 68¢€ 6L-bny
%8/ 86 000'6€ 000 v¥L'L 66€ 61-des
%9/ €6 000'8€ 000°/91°L 10V 61-190
%l 68 000°/€ 000°€0L°L Sly 61-AON
%9/ 06 000'8¢ 000°LLL°) (44 61-2980
%96 £01 19'166'L 000'825°LL SIViIOL
%el 68 000'9¢ 000'62L'L ozy Qz-uer
%08 £6 000'0% 000°9S1'} ey 02-984
%98 16 000°E¥ 000'¥+E'| (a2 0z-'elN
%26 z0l 000'9% 000'2/€') £GY 0Z-1dy
%00/ 801 008'6¥% 000'S+S'L 6SY oz-Aep
%901 GLL 00}'€S 000°'+6S'| £oY oz-unr
%001 101 000'0S 000°Z¥S' | 897 0e-Inr
%801 an 000'%S 000°199'} Y.y 0¢-bnvy
%001 v0l 000'0S 000°L1G'} 18V 0¢-dog
%001 €0l 000°0S 000°EHS'| G8Y 0¢-10
%86 001 000°6% 000°99%'L 69¥ 02-AON
%0L | m 000°SS 000°SLZ'L 961 0z-98Q
%26 16 00°008°SH 000'G06°9 SIv1OL
%90} 901 000'€S 000°0¥9'L 867 LZ-uer
%88 89 000'v¥ 000'+€2'} 20§ 1Z-ged
%96 S6 000'8y 00072V’ $0S LZ-'en
%08 6/ 000°0% 000'681'} 90S | Z-10v
%88 /8 000'v¥ 000°0ZE"} 905 LZ-AeiN
o, Ayoede?) uold3uuo) oBRIOA P
dLMM 194 MO|4 m>< \' 14 [ejoL suonidauUuUoCH

JAUB0) 93y 18 ¥EDT] JAEM .

|eo1I0ISIH MO|4 J8IEMBISEAA (IDM UdUBY uolunay




& 'NFRAMARK

WATER INFRASTRUCTUSRE QPLRATIONS

Open Work Orders for Pond maintenance & repair:

WO#: Location: Work scheduled:

2275994 591B Katie Dr, DP 2-4 Investigate deep trench, remove
vegetation

2396357 Mary Elise Way, DP 2-2 Clean silt & vegetation from
inlet — holding water

2461680 Mary Elise Way, DP 2-2 Small Erosion issue, hole forming
by Inlet

2461783 Jacksdaw Dr, DP 3-3 Erosion issue at embankment of
Pond




@INFRAMARK

Completed Work Orders for Pond maintenance and repair:

WO#: Location: Work scheduled:

1701893 Mary Elise Way, DP 2-2 Add grass seed around Pond area

1701898 Mary Elise Way, DP 2-2 Clean silt out of Inlet structure

2053455 591B Katie Dr, DP 2-4 Replace rock that washed out on
road to Pond

2135542 Jacksdaw Dr, DP 3-1 Erosion issue at outfall/spillway,
area around erosion control fabric
and french drain s eroding

2155301 Mary Elise Way, DP 2-2 Clean Inlet

2155305 Reunion Blvd, DP 2-3 Clean Inlet

2276034 Jacksdaw Dr, DP 3-1 Clean Inlet — full of silt

2276039 Reunion Blvd, DP 2-3 Clean Inlet — full of vegetation
and silt

2319072 591B Katie Dr, DP 2-4 Replace broken stack located in
the sand basin

2319078 591B Katie Dr, DP 2-4 Clean Inlet by fence on far right,
clean deep ditch inlet in back

2319098 Jacksdaw Dr, DP 3-1 Clean Inlet

2367082 5918 Katie Dr, DP 2-4 Clean silt out of sand bay area so it
will drain, clean splitter box —clean
silt so it won’t hold water, grade in
front of splitter box in front of inlet

2387972 RRW(CID District Area Clean all storm outlets as identified
on TCEQ Inspection

2466755 591B Katie Dr, DP 2-4 Replaced lock on gate

2483580 591B Katie Dr, DP 2-4 Reset No Trespassing sign

2483622 Mary Elise Way, DP 2-2 Safety issue on trail, Metal edging
above ground, replace missing
red/white striped gate arm

2396347 Jacksdaw Dr, DP 3-1 Clean silt from inlet — holding
water

2543838 Jayne CV .
Needs cleaning, remove leaves

2546492 Reunion Blvd, DP 2-3

Clean Inlet




LIINIAD ISINFOWYIN - S01LZ0Z1SUoday 03 ¥ PUOCYQIDMYY) TIDM Y2UeN UoLnagsioutiq LN SdOVI

SLINIWWOD

dv3i1o £IUSWIPAsS pue SLIGIP JO 1ea]d eale ul SI9jul jje auy
VYIN Jeuoneiado pue paso|d aAjeA ssedAq Aousbiawg
VIN Jeuonesado uado aAjeA abieyossiq
VIN £("01@ ‘s|jem ueiqeb ‘sjjem Bujuiejal ‘abeulelp 93910uU09 ‘sadid) syuawald [eaMONYS 0} abewep Auy
VIN ¥99ys pue sdoj }no uea|d uado anowdy ¢ Guidid uleip J3pun oy} Ul punNoj JUSWIP3S SEM
V/N adid |je} 3n0 9Y3 punole uone}abaa Jo uocIIpUoD
LNO¥Y4 NI dN a7iNg LNIWIA3S @ XO0HT11Nd NI SSYHD Zelpaw 3y} Jo uoRIpuo)
Y/N £ Bale Uiseq Ul punoy Ysniq Jo Saai1]
VIN 21ybiay u1 8| mojaq uonejaban s|
Y/N ¢.9)IS JB punoy ysei|
V/N ¢ Bale Jaj|iy pues a3y} ul yidap juswipas
Y/N ¢Aeqi0} 9y} ul yidap Juawipasg
V/N £SInoy g ulyum uiesp puod ay) ssog
V/N |9A3] 49)eMm puod

NIvydd 3IA0D ISINTA

uones0T puod

VHIVEA ANNVL -"HO31

9G62€ST ‘#OM

12/0L/S0 :31va

HONVY NOINNTY :LD0d1SI1a

1371N0O NIvViad
NOILO3dSNI ANOd ¥3LVMINYOLS

SNOTLWYIMdO I¥NLIDNYISVIINT Y3 LVM

NAVINVYHANI




NIYNQ IA0D INAVIAYH - S0\LZ0ZvaN0d2Y 5T P PUOL(AISMAUY) QIDM USUEY USUNIMIUINGLLNIN- SOV

e T
T

SININWOD
VIN ZIUBUNPSS pue SLIGIP JO Je3jd BaJE Ul SIB|ul |[B aly
VIN Jeuonjesado pue paso|s aAjeA ssedAq Aouabiawg
V/IN Jeuonesado uado aajeA abieyssig
VIN & (0310 ‘s|jem ueiqeb ‘s|jem Buluielal ‘abeulelp aj21ou0d ‘sadid) sjuaws|d |exmdnss 0} abewep Auy
VIN %o2ays pue sdoj Jno ues)d uado sroway ¢ Buidid ujelp Japun sy} Ul punoj JUSWIPAS SEM
VIN adid |jej 3n0 ay) punoJe uoejobaa Jo uoIpUOD
aooo £eIpaw 8yj JO UoRIpuo?)
ON £B3JE UISBq Ul pUNOy Ysniq 40 S3alf
S3A £ybiay u1 gL mojaq uoneyaban s|
V/N £9NS Je punoy yses|
V/IN ZeaJe Jo)|1y pues ay) ul yidep Juswipag
VIN ¢Aeqioy ay} ul yydap Juawipag
YIN ZsInoy gy uiynm uresp puod ayj saoqg
Y/N |oA3] Jojem puod
NIVdd IAO0D 3NVTI uones0 puod
VHHVEA AWNVL “HO3L NOILO3AdSNI ANOd 43LVMINYOLS
9G562€S¢C ‘#OM SNOILYYIdO I¥NLINYLSYIINI ¥ILvMm
12Z/0L/S0 :3LVQ V_ m<2 <mm Z _ @
HONVY NOINN3Y :LOK1SIa




0891992 OM - ONINYOL ITOH TIVINS ‘ANSSI ZO_wO.mm .

27 JOMAYI - SO\ LZ0Z1810daY D3 § PUOA(GIOMYY) TIDM YUY UOUN3Y\KOLISILNN-SJONT

25€96€Z OM - NOILVY1393A ANV LN3INIQ3S SVYH 137NI

S1INIWWOD

a3.Lv1393A ATIAVIH TIV41NO/ONIMOW SA33N ANOd

Viva ON ¢puod 3y} Jo awn|OA 3y} padnpal pue paje|nwnode sey juswipasg

ON Ziuaunjuequua Jo wep ay) uo juasaid uonejabaa Apoom Jo sadi]

ON éasaid sjued aasieau]

ON Zjuasaid swoo|q eebe aAlssos9x]

a3aLv1iao3an AlIAvaIH ¢adid [je} no ay) punoie uoneabaa jo uonpuo?)
V/N ¢éjeuonesado uado aajeA sbieyosiq

S3A £,S91N19N1)S }3[IN0 1O S)3|ul 3y} punoJe HuLnNv20 uoisoig

08919YZ OM 1OdS TIVINS - SIA éauljaioys je juasaid uoisoiz
S3A Zluaunjuequia a3y} ui d|qisIA sdaas 10 SHIeID ‘DoYPHUIS

ON £.9)Is Je punoj yseu|

165€96£2 OM ON £S1Qap 1O JUBWIPas paje|nwndde JO Jea[d S)ajuf

S3A Zuonipuod [einjonsis poob ui sysju|

aNOd 13aMm LI9A8) Jajem puod

2-2 dOM uofjeson] puod

VdivaA AWNVL -"HO3L

9662€S2 -#OM

k2/01/S0 -31va

HONVY NOINN3Y :LORMLSIa

SANOd 13Mm
NOILO3dSNI ANOd ¥3LVMINYOLS

SNOILYY3IdO IYNLIONYLSYUINI HILYM

AYVINVHANI




£-Z JOMAYA - 50\1202\SHodaY D3 § PUo(QIOMYN) OIOM YAUBY UOUNIH\SIPUIBICT [ NW-SONT

SLINIWWOD

v1vd ON épuod ay} Jo sawinjoA ay) padnpal pue paje|NWNJIJe Sey JuswWIpag
ON Zjusaunjuequa Jo wep ay) uo juasaid uonelsban Apoom 1o seas}
ON Zuasaid sjueld aasieAu|
ON ¢juasaid swoo|q aebje anlssadaxy
V/N ¢adid |ie} Ino ayj) punole uonejabaa jo uonipuo)
Y/N Zleuonesado uado aajea abieyasiqg
ON £.531M)9N1)S 13[IN0 JO S)3jul 3y} punole Huinddo uoisos]
ON Zauijaloys je juasaid uoisos]
ON Zuawnjuequia ayj ul 3[qiIsia sdass 1o s)oeid ‘aloyyuls
ON Z9)IS Je punoy yseu|
S3IA £.SUQap 10 JUBWIP3S PIJeINWNIDE JO JBI[D SI9|U|
S3A £uonipuod [esnyonJys poob ul siejuj
aNOd 13IM £19A9] Jd)em puod
-2 dJOM uoneso puod
SANOd 13M
VHEVEA AWNVL “HO3L NOILO3dSNI ANOd 431VMINYHOLS
9S62€SC H#OM SNOILYY3dO JYNLONYLSYHINI ¥ILVYM

12/01/50 :31va

HONVY NOINN3d :1o1d1sIa

A4dVIANVHANI




2 JOMAYI - SO\ 03 ¥ puo, QIOM Uoumy ICLNI-SAOVT

665222 OM - HON3¥L 4330 LV NOILVLIOIA 2LVOILSTANI

SINIWWOD

ON ZIUBWIpas pue SLIGOP JO 1899 Bale U] S)ajul |je 8ly

V/IN |euonelado pue paso|d aajeA ssedAq Aouablowsg

S10dS NI LNJNIJ3IS SYH xog Jopids 10 |duuey epjouL
ON ¢(*919 ‘sjjem ueiqeb ‘sjjem Bujuiejal ‘abeuelp 9331ou09 ‘sadid) sjuswala [einjongs o} abewep Auy

ON )o9ays pue sdoj Ino ues)d uado arowsy ¢ Buidid ujesp Japun ay} Ul punoj JUSWIPAS SEAL

g31v1i3o3A ATIAV3IH adid |18} Ino ay) punoue uonelaban jo uoRipuon
13M Jelipatu 2y} JO UoRIpuo)

ON ¢BaJe ufseq Uj punoj ysnaq Jo sasi]

S3A 2iybiay u1 g1 mojaq uonejobona sj

ON 4511 18 punoy yses|

W Zeale Jay|ij pues ey3 ul yidep Juswipss

W7 = u€ ¢Kequoy ay) uj Yyidap Juswipag

S3A 2sinoy gp ulylm ujelp puod oy} seoq

S10dS NI LIm |9A8] 49JeM puod

7-¢ dOM uoledo” puod

VuvaA ANWVL 'HO3L

9562£S2 ‘#OM

12/0L/S0 :3Lva

HONVY NOINN3Y -LO1M1SIa

IN3LSAS ¥3171d ANVS
NOILDO3dSNI ANOd J3LVMINNOLS

SNOILVYY3IdO IYNLONYLSYYINT HILYM

NAYVIAVYHANI




ONIMOW SA33N ANOd

1€ JOMUAYIN - SO LZOZSHOD3Y O3 F PUSAWAIDMYY) QIDM YUY UCUNAUSIOUISIAN LN IN-SOVT

SINIWIWOD|

Y.1vd ON ¢ puod ay) Jo awN|oA 3y} paonpal pue psjejnwndde sey Juswipag
ON £IUsUnjUBqIS JO Wep 3y} uo juasaid uoneobaa Apoom Jo sasi]

ON 2iuasaud syueld aasieau]

ON éluasaid swoo|q aebje salssadaxy
aooo 2adid |je Jno sy} punouse uonejyaban jo uonpuo)
V/N Zleuonerado uado aAjeA abieyosig

ON £S91N19N1S J2)IN0 JO S}ajul 8y} puno.e BuiNooo uoisouy

ON Zauljaioys e Juasaid uoisosq

ON Jluswuequia ay} ui 9|qisia sdaas 1o syoeID ‘BjoyYMuIS

ON £.9)IS Je punoy ysea]

S3IA £51Qap 10 JUBWIPaS PSJeINWNJJE JO JB3|D SIBju|

S3A £UORIPUO? [BIN}JoNIIS poob ul syaju)
aNOd 13M LIOAS] J9jem puod
1-€ JOM uonedso] puod

VAVEA AWAIVL -°'HO3L

9562€ST ‘#OM

L2/0L/S0 31va

HONVY NOINN3Y :1OR1SId

SANOd 13M
NOILO3dSNI ANOd ¥31LVMINYOLS

SNOILYYIJO 3UNLINYLSYYINI ¥3LYM

AYVIAVYANI




>

£8/19¥Z OM LNIWYNVEWI NO NOISON3|

€-E JOMMAV - S0\LZ02\SHOdaY D3 § PUOA(QIDMMN) GIOM YURY UDIUNSHTAASICNIW-SO\ I

ONIMON SA33IN ANOd

vivd ON ¢ puod 3y) Jo awN|OA 3y} paonpai pue pajejnwnade sey Juswipag
ON Zjuaunjuequd Jo wep 3y} uo juasaid uoijejaban Apoom Jo saai]

ON iuesaid sjue)d aasieAu|

ON 2luasaid swoo|q sebje aAIssadaxg
aooo ¢adid |Jej 3no ay) punoue uonejabaa jo uonipuo)
S3A Zleuoneiado uado aAfea obieyssiq
137TINI ON £.591n39N43S 33|3IN0 JO S)3jul 3y} punole Buinooso uoisolx
S3dA Zauljaioys e juasaid uoisoig

S3A Zjuaunjuequa sy} ui a|qisia sdaas Jo SYOBID ‘SjoYulS

ON £.9)IS Je punoy ysei|

137INI ON ¢S1Qap 1O JUSWIP3S PIIB|NWNIIE JO JBd|d S)a|u|
137INI ON £uonipuod |einyonLs poob ui sja|u|
aNOd 13am ZI9A3] Ja)em puod
£€-¢ JOM uones0T puod

VYVEA AWAVL 'HO3L

9662£SC ‘#OM

12/0LIS *31va

HONVY NOINN3Y - LOoRLSIa

SANOd 13M
NOILO3dSNI ANOd 431LVMINYOLS

SNOILYYE3IdO FYNLONYLSYUINI ¥IL1VM

AAdVIAVYANI




siapjing 0} suoday |0JjuoD) uoisos\ | NW-SdON| S1/.0/¢t

vodai ul paquasap Se - 4IHLO sAep S uIylIm pos Spaau ‘Ino paweo| pJeA - 1A
"9UOU JO PIUIEIUOI JOU ‘|NJ JSA0 ‘UK0IG XOq JUBLUUIBIUOD Ysell - gL papasu Jo Jieda. ‘Buppuay d8uelo - 40
3n|d Jo1depe g 10 . Buissiw/iedal o ded Jamas - OIS *019 ‘91321 098 ‘X314NJ ‘YN ‘BuIdU YIS ‘pOS {papasu sainseaw D3 - D3I
papaau Jo ueap ‘aaejdal ‘Jiedau luonpajo.d 33jul wiols - dIS papaau Jo Buip|oy jou ‘Jledal ‘noysem a3a40U03 - M)
papasu Jo pudixd ‘dejdau ‘Bupuay yis Jiedal - 4SY e2.e N2 Jo/pue 1aalis uespd - §)
papaau uofpadsuial/uondadsul ‘saul| Jo1em/I9Mas LI9A0D pue paq Ajjadoud - Had JUaA3 ujes SulNp 3y J0U saINseawW 3 {Papasu X201 ||ng - NYg
dlleN-N
uosliio JojAe] - HWL
siayjoig oL -1
sawoH uojdulyyng - g
SOWOH |/IN - 1IN
SOWOHJdewpual] - AIL
SINIS - S
13p[24 103§ - 1S
L 9 SO 3V LLY H3INMO
QUIYSIIM/IHIN - MIN
SOWOH pueysiH - H b S SO 311X 40 dN3 HW1
PI9P400.q - Hd ! v TA ‘W03 MVASHOVT ZvZh HINL
$23.Q - 44 ‘ HNL
sawoH Apjaam pired - a b € JA 'NO4 MVYASHOVT EvEL 40 1437
. 3 [4 WO3 MVYASHOVF GLLL HINL
‘S3INVN H3Alng T
2 3 N8 40 4SYH MVYASHIVT G0l HINL
"LWV 3NId [# NOILVTOIA | # 34N 121d NOILVY10IA S$S3yaav d3aaiing
| #ebed HONVY NOINN3Y ‘JNVYN 1L03rodd 120Z'01°50 ¥1eq

L30d3¥ NOILVIOIA NOILONYULSNOD S.y3aaiing







